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New York State Department of Labor (NYSDOL) 
Consolidated Funding Application (CFA)  
Questions and Answers Pertaining to the Request for Proposals (RFP) 
(Updated 7/22/16.  Round 6.  New questions and answers are added weekly and indicated below after 
each revision date.) 

Request for Proposals (RFPs) are available at the New York State Department of Labor website at 
www.labor.ny.gov/cfa/ or they can be accessed after logging into CFA portal at 
https://apps.cio.ny.gov/apps/cfa/. 

Use CTRL+Click to jump to these sections in the document: 

GENERAL QUESTIONS  EXISTING EMPLOYEE TRAINING  NEW HIRE TRAINING

SPECIAL POPULATIONS TRAINING  UNEMPLOYED WORKER TRAINING  

General Questions 

G Q #1) I am writing from a college.  We would like to apply for Workforce Development through our 
Research Foundation to provide trainings to unemployed workers and for special populations.  
We would be applying as a “Training Provider.”  Would we be eligible? 

G A # 1)  Yes, as a training provider, a college  applying through their Research Foundation for 
the Special Populations and Unemployed Worker Training programs would be considered 
eligible, assuming the college also meets other eligibility requirements listed in the Applicant 
Eligibility (section III.A.) of the respective Request for Proposals. 

G Q #2) I am in the beginning stages of applying for a RFP put out by the NY State Department of 
Labor, Division of Employment and Workforce Solutions Consolidated Funding Application 6.0 
(Unemployed Worker Training (CFA-UWT) with the submission deadline of July 29, 2016.  I went 
on the grants gateway portal and could not find the RFP on it.  Can you help? 

G A # 2)  The Consolidated Funding Applications (CFA) round 6 Request for Proposals (RFPs) are 
available at the New York State Department of Labor website at www.labor.ny.gov/cfa/ or they 
can be accessed after logging onto the CFA portal at https://apps.cio.ny.gov/apps/cfa/.  All 
applications must be submitted via the CFA portal.  Please find additional details about the 
proposal submission in Process for Proposal Submission (section IV.) of the RFP. 

In addition, all applicants are required to register in the Grants Gateway System and non-profit 
applicants must also prequalify in the Grant Gateway System before the submission deadline of 
July 29, 2016.  Please find more information about the Grants Gateway System in Contracting 
Process (section II.E.) of the RFP.   

Pre-recorded webinars on various CFAs can be found at 
http://regionalcouncils.ny.gov/genericcfa/2016-cfa-materials. 

http://www.labor.ny.gov/cfa/
https://apps.cio.ny.gov/apps/cfa/
http://www.labor.ny.gov/cfa/
https://apps.cio.ny.gov/apps/cfa/
http://regionalcouncils.ny.gov/genericcfa/2016-cfa-materials
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G Q #3) Having read the CFA 6.0, we have some questions regarding what the state considers to be HR 
training.  Is there some sort of resource we could consult to help us better understand what the 
State defines as HR training? 

G A # 3)  For the Consolidated Funding Application (CFA) Request for Proposals (RFPs), the NYS 
Department of Labor defines Human Resources (HR) trainings as trainings needed or required to 
be provided to employees to better understand the workplace to improve the work 
environment and are not specific to the job or occupation of the employees.  The provision of 
these HR trainings is a normal cost of doing business and is the responsibility of the business. HR 
trainings, as standalone trainings and without occupational skills trainings, would typically not 
lead to career advancement of the employees or trainees.  

Examples include, but are not limited to, basic trainings about: sexual harassment, diversity, 
new employee orientation, accessing reasonable accommodation, cyber security, internal 
controls, internet security, workplace violence, human relations and sensitivity at work place, 
fire safety and evacuations, and workplace hazards that do not typically provide specific 
occupational skills. 

G Q #4) Can one organization apply to multiple project types within Education/Workforce 
Development, for example: Project type 1 (EET) and 4 (SPT)? 

G A # 4)  As indicated in Section II (A) of each Consolidated Funding Application (CFA) Round 6 
Request for Proposals (RFPs), “Eligible applicants may apply for funding under one, two, three or 
all four of these programs. However, the maximum award an eligible applicant may receive is a 
total award of $100,000, regardless of the number of NYSDOL programs for which it applies. For 
example, an applicant may apply for $25,000 under each of the four programs, for a total 
capped award of $100,000, but may not apply for $100,000 under each program. Applicants 
must draft their requests for NYSDOL funding as a standalone training program. The proposal 
must not be based in whole or in part on the assumption that they will receive complementary 
funding from other CFA programs/agencies.” 

G Q #5) What is the definition of “dislocated workers”? 

G A # 5)  A definition for dislocated worker can be found in the RFP’s Attachment 9 – 
Determining Dislocated Workers and Special Populations. 

G Q #6) Can an Unincorporated Local Workforce Development Board (LWDB) apply for the grant on 
their own using the fiscal agent as the applicant? 

G A # 6)  An unincorporated LWDB is eligible to apply for Special Population Training (SPT) or 
Unemployed Worker Training (UWT) funds through the local area’s WIOA fiscal agent, if the 
fiscal agent has more than two employees and they subcontract the occupational skills training.  
LWDBs/One-Stop Operators may not deliver training directly with these WIOA funds. 

New Questions as of 5/20/16 start below: 

G Q #7) How is a high need area defined? Is there a list of already determined high need areas? 

G A # 7) For each round of the CFA, NYSDOL makes the determination if the proposed training 
program is offered in a location of high, medium or low need based on the project address 
provided by the applicant.  Indicators such as population adult poverty rates, adult 
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Counties of 

High Need 

Counties of 

Moderate Need 

Counties of 

Low Need 

Allegany Delaware  Albany

Bronx Cayuga Chemung 

Broome Clinton Columbia

Cattaraugus Dutchess Cortland

Chautauqua Erie Genesee

Chenango Essex Hamilton

Franklin Herkimer Livingston

Fulton Lewis Madison

Greene Oneida Nassau

Jefferson Onondaga Niagara

Kings Orange Ontario

Monroe Otsego Putnam

Montgomery Rockland Rensselaer

New York Seneca Richmond

Orleans Steuben Saratoga

Oswego Suffolk Schenectady

Queens Tompkins Schuyler

Schoharie Ulster Tioga

St. Lawrence Westchester Warren

Sullivan Yates Wayne

Washington Wyoming

unemployment rates, adult literacy rates, and level of education in each county of the State are 
taken into account to determine the need . Eligibility Information (section III of the Request for 
Proposals) provides additional details on target geography. 

The table below lists the high, medium, and low need counties for CFA 6.0. 

 

New Questions as of 6/3/16 start below: 

G Q #8) Which program would a proposal which focuses on providing workforce development soft 
skills in geospatial technology qualify for?  Please advise also about the funding amount / ceiling. 

G A # 8)  A program would be eligible to apply for New York State Department of Labor’s 
(NYSDOL) Consolidated Funding Application (CFA) 6.0, if it meets the criteria from Applicant 
Eligibility (section III.A) and Minimum Threshold Requirements (section V.B.1) listed in Request 
for Proposals (RFPs) available at www.labor.ny.gov/cfa. The webpage includes: the RFPs for all 
four NYSDOL CFA 6.0 programs, questions asked by other applicants and their answers, pre-
recorded webinars, and a one page matrix comparing the four programs. This one-page matrix 
will be useful to understand the differences in the programs.  

NYSDOL CFA 6.0 RFPs are for: 

 Providing occupational skills training courses to: 

o Existing employees, who are in low or middle skills occupations, under Existing 
Employee Training Program (EET) RFP 

http://www.labor.ny.gov/cfa
http://www.labor.ny.gov/CFA/cfa-6-0-nysdol-programs-comparison.pdf
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o Dislocated workers (unemployed individuals who meet the dislocated worker 
criteria described in attachment 9 available at the NYSDOL CFA webpage) under the 
Unemployed Worker Training (UWT) Program or Special Populations Training 
Program (SPT). Under SPT RFP, 80% of class must belong to one or more of special 
populations listed in the RFP.  

 Providing on-the-job training to a newly hired dislocated worker under New Hire Training 
Program.  

Please note that the EET, UWT, and SPT programs are for providing concrete occupational skills 
training course(s), which is defined as: instruction conducted in a classroom setting, either at an 
outside institute or at the worksite, designed to provide individuals with or update them in the 
skills required to perform a specific job or a group of jobs needed by the business.  In addition, 
the SPT and UWT programs: 

 Require commitment from businesses to interview the trainees and consider the trainees 
for employment, thus  the occupational skills training course(s) must be compatible with 
business demand; and 

 Allow for career pathways and employability skills development, and job 
placement/retention services as part of occupational skills training course(s), but cannot be 
stand alone trainings.  

Please review Use of Funds (section II.B) and Unallowable Trainings (section II.B.4) of the RFPs 
for additional details.  

An eligible applicant and its components are only eligible for a total award of $100,000 under 
these RFPs, not one per location, and are subject as a whole to the funding limitations described 
in the RFP. An eligible applicant and its components may apply for funding under one, two, 
three or all four of NYSDOL CFA 6.0 programs. However, the maximum award an eligible 
applicant and its components may receive is a total award of $100,000, regardless of number of 
NYSDOL programs for which it applies. Please note: If separate operations or locations of an 
eligible applicant want to apply separately, they may do so only if they have different Federal 
Employer Identification Numbers (FEINs). However, NYSDOL will also have to confirm that all 
such branches, locations, and companies are not part of a greater whole. The Research 
Foundations of SUNY and CUNY, if they are submitting proposals on behalf of more than one 
college, are exempted from this requirement. 

G Q #9) If the CFA contractor does pay for OSHA training that is basic safety training for a Basic 
Manufacturing Training course, is it then allowable? 

G A # 9)  OSHA trainings or any other trainings that are mandated by government agencies are 
not allowable. 

New Questions as of 6/10/16 start below: 

G Q #10) Can an applicant correct a threshold question and resubmit? 

G A # 10) There is no way to resubmit a threshold question.  The applicant will need to 
register with a new token and start a brand new application if a threshold question is answered 
incorrectly. (Answer provided by CFA-Tech@ny.gov) 

mailto:CFA-Tech@ny.gov
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G Q #11) Is the application I filled out still there? 

G A # 11) Unfortunately, the NYSDOL CFA Team cannot see applications in the database 
until they have successfully completed the threshold questions and are in progress.  Applicants 
should be able to sign in to the CFA portal and review their application.  Technical questions, 
about the CFA portal itself, should be emailed to Cfa-tech@ny.gov for CFA administration as the 
NYSDOL CFA Team can only answer program related questions. 

G Q #12) Please help us determine which of the four we are eligible, for which one we may be 
the most eligible, and why our initial application was deemed not eligible. 

G A # 12) In seeking more specific guidance regarding which of the four workforce 
development funding programs you may be eligible for, please note in section IV.B. of the RFP it 
states “Eligible applicants may speak with a New York State Career Center Business Services 
Representative (BSR) for technical assistance or support during the development of the 
proposal.  BSRs contact information may be found at the following link: 
http://www.labor.ny.gov/formsdocs/factsheets/pdfs/p469.pdf.”  The NYSDOL CFA Team could 
attempt to locate the reason the application was deemed ineligible but would need to see the 
responses to the threshold questions to understand why the application was deemed ineligible. 

G Q #13) I have proceeded to the questions for the Existing Employee Training and New Hire, 
these are the only two that I am interested in, but a few of the other ones came up I started to 
answer the first one, but do not want that one, how do I get the answers out of the Unemployed 
Worker Training.  In addition I am not interested in the Unemployed Worker Training or Special 
Populations, so do I have to answer those to proceed? 

G A # 13) After you log into your application, click the word Programs towards the left of 
your screen, just below the Application number. From this screen you can add/remove 
programs from your application. (Answer provided by CFA-Tech@ny.gov) 

G Q #14) Is it advantageous to apply through the CFA for the DOL grants separately from a CFA 
application for other projects such as capital projects? 

G A # 14) No, the applicant should consider applying for all CFA projects of interest via 
one application.  In doing so, answers to the CFA portal’s basic questions, such as contact 
information, project location, etc., will only be required one time. 

Please note that NYSDOL also makes grants available outside of the CFA process.  Available 
grants are posted at: https://labor.ny.gov/businessservices/funding.shtm. 

G Q #15) Where can I find a list of application questions for the New York State Department of 
Labor’s CFA workforce grants? 

G A # 15) All threshold and program evaluation questions for each of the four grants 
offered by the New York State Department of Labor in round 6 of the Consolidated Funding 
Application may be found in the program’s Request for Proposal (RFP) at www.labor.ny.gov.  

A more comprehensive list of questions, including all basic questions related to contact, location 
of project, type of organization and program evaluation questions is available at 
https://apps.cio.ny.gov/apps/cfa/help.cfm?section=programquestions. Please click on the 
appropriate program name to locate the applicable questions. 

mailto:Cfa-tech@ny.gov
http://www.labor.ny.gov/formsdocs/factsheets/pdfs/p469.pdf
mailto:CFA-Tech@ny.gov
https://labor.ny.gov/businessservices/funding.shtm
http://www.labor.ny.gov/
https://apps.cio.ny.gov/apps/cfa/help.cfm?section=programquestions
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G Q #16) Because we received funding for another workforce development project through the 
fiscal 2017 budget process through DOL (but not through the CFA process,) does this disqualify us 
from applying? 

G A # 16) No, this would not be a reason for disqualification.  Consolidated Funding 
Application (CFA) funds are separate of any other workforce development funding you may 
receive through the New York State Department of Labor (NYSDOL). 

G Q #17) Are non-profit colleges and/or universities eligible to apply? 

G A # 17) Yes, non-profit colleges and/or universities are eligible to apply for funding 
under the NYSDOL’s consolidated funding application.  Please see a comparison chart of all four 
programs at www.labor.ny.gov/cfa. 

New Questions as of 6/17/16 start below: 

G Q #18) Whom do we discuss our pending training with? 

G A # 18) If you are seeking more specific guidance regarding which of the four workforce 
development funding programs you may be eligible for, please note in section IV.B. of the RFPs 
it states “Eligible applicants may speak with a New York State Career Center Business Services 
Representative (BSR) for technical assistance or support during the development of the 
proposal.  BSRs contact information may be found at the following link: 
http://www.labor.ny.gov/formsdocs/factsheets/pdfs/p469.pdf.” 

G Q #19) Would an organization that trains people who then go out and train/coach job seekers 
be eligible for funding? 

G A # 19) Yes, training providers of employment trainers are eligible for funding as long as 
the eligible trainees are either: 

 Applicant business’ existing workers who will enter or remain in middle-skills 
occupations, i.e. with Job Zone 1, 2 or 3 under EET; 

 Dislocated workers who will be hired by the applicant businesses for on-the-job 
training under NHT; 

 Dislocated workers who will be trained by a training provider and will have 
commitment for other businesses to hire the trainees under UWT; or/and 

 Dislocated workers with at least 80% of class belonging to one or more special 
populations and will have commitment for other businesses to hire the trainees 
under SPT 

G Q #20) Can any business in the state apply to the CFA grant?  Is there a deadline? 

G A # 20) Yes, businesses throughout New York State are eligible to apply for CFA grants – 
specifically the Existing Employee and New Hire Training programs. 

The funding matrix available at www.labor.ny.gov/cfa can assist with deadlines and other broad 
questions regarding the New York State Department of Labor’s CFA RFPs. 

http://www.labor.ny.gov/cfa
http://www.labor.ny.gov/formsdocs/factsheets/pdfs/p469.pdf
https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3a%2f%2fwww.labor.ny.gov%2fcfa&data=01%7c01%7cMonica.DellaPorta%40crl.com%7c5393aa59d94a40687b1e08d395210a47%7c374f8930e1504031bb35483215fe5900%7c0&sdata=X5CAhDxVyVYCp89n0WJzYc93teMdGGHfVdQ52EWj2IM%3d
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The Consolidated Funding Applications (CFA) Round 6 Request for Proposals (RFPs) are available 
at the New York State Department of Labor website at www.labor.ny.gov/cfa/ or they can be 
accessed after logging into the CFA portal at https://apps.cio.ny.gov/apps/cfa/. All applications 
must be submitted via the CFA portal.  Please find additional details about the proposal 
submission in Process for Proposal Submission (section IV.) of the RFP.  

In addition, all applicants are required to register in the Grants Gateway System before the 
submission deadline of July 29, 2016. Please find more information about the Grants Gateway 
System in Contracting Process (section II.E.) of the RFP.   

Pre-recorded webinars on various CFAs can be found at 
http://regionalcouncils.ny.gov/genericcfa/2016-cfa-materials. 

G Q #21) Could an applicant hire a trainer to train participants in construction skills – using 
another organization’s site for housing rehabilitation – and then connect the participants to area 
businesses for long term hire once training is complete? 

G A # 21) Yes, an applicant can hire a trainer and use the grant for many other services 
(along with training costs).  The applicant must create a “tuition rate,” if they don’t have a 
published one already.  The RFP details what costs can be included in a tuition rate. 

A one-page matrix (http://www.labor.ny.gov/CFA/cfa-6-0-nysdol-programs-comparison.pdf) 
explains the difference in the programs. 

New Questions as of 6/24/16 start below: 

G Q #22) We are not a Local Workforce Development Board, but we do provide training, 
doesthis count? 

G A # 22) Yes, training providers are eligible for funding as long as the eligible trainees are 
either: 

• Applicant business’ existing workers who will enter or remain in middle-skills 
occupations, i.e. with Job Zone 1, 2 or 3 under Existing Employee Training; 

• Dislocated workers who will be hired by the applicant businesses for on-the-job 
training under New Hire Training; 

• Dislocated workers who will be trained by a training provider and will have 
commitment for other businesses to hire the trainees under Unemployed Worker 
Training; or/and 

• Dislocated workers with at least 80% of class belonging to one or more special 
populations and will have commitment for other businesses to hire the trainees under 
Special Populations Training 

Please note, the applicant business in this situation is the training provider. 

G Q #23) We are not applying to hire but to train new hires.  Does Q5875, asking if we have 
openings for employees in need of occupational skills training(s) in order for the employees to 
enter low or middle-skills occupations, apply to us? 

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3a%2f%2fwww.labor.ny.gov%2fcfa%2f&data=01%7c01%7cMonica.DellaPorta%40crl.com%7c5393aa59d94a40687b1e08d395210a47%7c374f8930e1504031bb35483215fe5900%7c0&sdata=lNuXStUQCDxtjDfg36dIjq9PcuLfLuogNkcaZOS4IvY%3d
https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3a%2f%2fapps.cio.ny.gov%2fapps%2fcfa%2f&data=01%7c01%7cMonica.DellaPorta%40crl.com%7c5393aa59d94a40687b1e08d395210a47%7c374f8930e1504031bb35483215fe5900%7c0&sdata=wSYAAPYYuGFn7Vxy%2fAKS%2bMWsnOqUGJPPFkZFyFLvPEU%3d
https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3a%2f%2fregionalcouncils.ny.gov%2fgenericcfa%2f2016-cfa-materials&data=01%7c01%7cMonica.DellaPorta%40crl.com%7c5393aa59d94a40687b1e08d395210a47%7c374f8930e1504031bb35483215fe5900%7c0&sdata=E0%2bXBLtN25%2f52LIAML6Y0HFcsCu3qo3xsHkoh1wPM34%3d
http://www.labor.ny.gov/CFA/cfa-6-0-nysdol-programs-comparison.pdf
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G A # 23) Training providers are eligible for funding as long as the eligible trainees are 
either: 

• Dislocated workers who will be trained by a training provider and will have 
commitment for other businesses to hire the trainees under Unemployed Worker 
Training; or/and 

• Dislocated workers with at least 80% of class belonging to one or more special 
populations and will have commitment for other businesses to hire the trainees under 
Special Populations Training 

G Q #24) We are the trainer, not the employer.  Please explain how Q5814, noting we would be 
liable for the reimbursement to the State of the cost of the training associated with any laid-off 
worker(s) within one year of the end day of the resulting contract, applies to us. 

G A # 24) Q5814 is a threshold question for applicants requesting Existing Employee 
Training and/or New Hire Training funding.  You have indicated you are not seeking funding for 
existing employees or new hires. 

G Q #25) As a training provider we can’t attest to Q5819, that ensures training will take place 
on company time and trainees will be compensated at no less than their normal rate of pay while 
they attend training.  Wouldn’t the hiring company would have to attest to that? 

G A # 25) Q5819 is a threshold question for applicants requesting Existing Employee 
Training and/or New Hire Training funding.  You have indicated you are not seeking funding for 
existing employees or new hires. 

G Q #26) Can the applicant define the year period in which they plan to accomplish training? 
For example, March 2016-March 2017 or does it have to begin in January 2016? 

G A # 26) As noted in section VI.B. (Payment), “trainings may not begin until after an 
award is made” with the “earliest start date for any contract resulting from this RFP” being “the 
date of the award letter”.  It is indicated in section VI.A (Award Notices) that “awards will be 
announced at the Regional Economic Development Councils (REDC) Award Ceremony to be held 
in the fall of 2016.” as well as that “training must start no later than 6 months after the date of 
the award letter.”  Section II.D. (Contracts) notes “Contracts will be awarded for a period of up 
to one year.  Applicants must include only the training opportunities that can be reasonably 
accomplished within a one-year time period.” 

G Q #27) For New York City the LWDB is that of the Mayor’s Office for Workforce Development, 
or are there others? 

G A # 27) Yes, in NYC the Local Workforce Development Board (LWDB) is the Mayor’s 
Office for Workforce Development.  For convenience in discussing partnering with them, the link 
to the NYC LWDB contact information is 
https://labor.ny.gov/workforcenypartners/lwda/localboardsnyc.shtm. 

G Q #28) What should the partnership with the LWDB look like? What role will the LWDB play 
in the execution of the grant? 

https://labor.ny.gov/workforcenypartners/lwda/localboardsnyc.shtm
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G A # 28) Applicants to New Hire, Special Populations, and Unemployed Worker Training 
programs will note the RFPs encourage partnering in the Trainee Eligibility Determination and 
Partnering with Career Centers section.  The services offered in the Career Centers, and listed in 
this section, can complement the training services provided by the applicant and enhance the 
benefits available to trainees under this RFP.  In addition, as noted in this section, Career 
Centers may refer interested and eligible dislocated worker(s), if applicable, to applicants who 
receive awards under these RFPs. 

New Questions as of 7/1/16 start below: 

G Q #29) Can you dip into multiple OJT programs for funding in CFA? 

G A # 29) On-the-job training (OJT) is specific to the trainee.  If an applicant has a trainee 
currently being funded with an OJT from another source and wishes to continue training this 
trainee once the original OJT source funds are fully expended, the applicant could apply for 
Consolidated Funding Application (CFA) funds, but must do so under the Existing Employee 
Training (EET) Program.   

If an applicant has a separate source OJT in place and wishes to hire new trainees that fit the 
eligibility criteria of the CFA New Hire Training (NHT) Program, those new participants could be 
funded with CFA NHT funding. 

G Q #30) If a business does not have a credential to give can they still seek grant funding for 
training? 

G A # 30) Yes, an organization may apply under Consolidated Funding Application (CFA) 
6.0 if it does not provide an industry-recognized credential.  However, during scoring, additional 
points will be awarded to those programs that help trainees achieve industry-recognized 
credential(s) given by third party issuers or accredited institutions. 

G Q #31) How do I figure out what jobs are low skilled and medium skilled? 

G A # 31) The skill level of an occupation is determined based on the Job Zone of the 
occupation as listed in the Occupational Information Network (O*NET).  O*NET can be found 
online at http://www.onetonline.org/.  For additional information on low and middle-skills 
occupations, see section III.C.1. of the Existing Employee Training (EET) Request for Proposal 
(RFP) and Attachment 10 found at www.labor.ny.gov/cfa.   

G Q #32) Are these grant monies also being used to fund GED (sic) programs? 

G A # 32) Consolidated Funding Application (CFA) funds cannot be used to fund GED or 
other high school equivalency programs.  These programs are not considered occupational skills 
training, which is defined as up to one year of classroom training designed to provide 
participants with, or upgrade them, in the specific skills required to be proficient in a job needed 
by the business or group of businesses (Request for Proposal section II.B.). 

G Q #33) Is there training available for people who want to start their own businesses? 
Especially arts businesses? Is there funding for program development? 

http://www.onetonline.org/
http://www.labor.ny.gov/cfa
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G A # 33) Under the New York State Department of Labor’s (NYSDOL) Consolidated 
Funding Application (CFA), applicants submit proposals for the training they intend to provide.  
Until applications are submitted, NYSDOL is not aware of the type(s) of training applicants will 
propose. 

Per the Request for Proposal (RFP), section II.B., start-up costs, curriculum development, and 
assessment costs are not allowable use of funds for CFA 6.0. 

Several other New York State agencies take part in the CFA and may be able to fund additional 
activities.  For information on other types of available grants, please visit 
https://www.ny.gov/sites/ny.gov/files/atoms/files/2016ResourcesAvailableGuideFINALV4.pdf.  

G Q #34) Are veterans given priority points? 

G A # 34) New York State Department of Labor (NYSDOL) Consolidated Funding 
Application (CFA) proposals are reviewed for program design, program cost, and Regional 
Economic Development Council (REDC) alignment. The Special Populations Training (SPT) 
Program is specifically targeted to individuals with barriers to employment and veterans.  
Additionally, applications intending to serve veterans and/or other special populations will 
receive additional points in program design under the New Hire Training (NHT) and Unemployed 
Worker Training (UWT) programs. For a complete list of individuals with barriers to 
employment, please see Request for Proposal (RFP) Attachment 9, Determining Dislocated 
Workers and Special Populations. 

Applicants that propose projects that are part of the Veterans’ Related Project statewide 
initiative will also be looked upon favorably in the REDC’s scoring. 

G Q #35) Are the Training Funds Matching Funds? 

G A # 35) Under the New Hire Training (NHT) Program, the applicant business will receive 
up to 50% of the wage rate of the participant receiving on-site occupational skills training. If the 
applicant chooses to use leveraged funds beyond the 50% reimbursement, though not required, 
additional points will be awarded during scoring. For the Existing Employee Training (EET), 
Unemployed Worker Training (UWT), and Special Populations Training (SPT) programs, the 
applicant’s use of leveraged funds is encouraged and additional points will be awarded to those 
providing leveraged funding. Please see section II.C of the respective program’s Request for 
Proposal (RFP) for additional information on leveraged resources. 

G Q #36) Does the funding cover adaptive training equipment/material such as robotic 
simulator mannequins for healthcare training/HVAC/Welding? 

G A # 36) Per section II.B. of the Requests for Proposal (RFPs), the purchase of equipment 
is considered an unallowable cost under the Consolidated Funding Application (CFA). 

For Exiting Employee Training (EET), Special Populations Training (SPT), and Unemployed Worker 
Training (UWT) programs, books and training materials directly associated with the training are 
allowable, with the intention that the trainee(s) will keep these books and/or training materials 
upon completion of the training.  Books and training materials are budgeted separately from the 
tuition/classroom training costs.  If materials such as adaptive training equipment are directly 

https://www.ny.gov/sites/ny.gov/files/atoms/files/2016ResourcesAvailableGuideFINALV4.pdf
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associated with the training and will be kept by the trainees, they may be budgeted into the 
application. 

G Q #37) Are the costs associated with developing the training curriculum included in the 
reimbursement? 

G A # 37) No, curriculum development is not considered an allowable training under 
round 6.0 of the Consolidated Funding Application (section II.B of the Request for Proposal). 

G Q #38) Where is the approved vendors list? Does the vendor have to be located in NY? 

G A # 38) There is not an approved Consolidated Funding Application (CFA) vendors list.  
There is a New York State Eligible Training Provider List (ETPL), but organizations applying to the 
CFA are not required to be on the ETPL.  Training may take place outside of New York State, but 
travel and salary costs must be paid by the applicant and not the trainee.  In addition, training 
may take the form of a distance learning course, but the trainee must be located in New York 
State in this instance (Request for Proposal section II.B.). 

G Q #39) In all four RFP’s regarding the Consolidated Funding Application, it states “an eligible 
applicant may only receive a total award of $100,000 regardless of the number of NYSDOL 
programs for which it applies.”  Is it to our advantage to submit only the strongest (1) of the 
applications? Will submitting multiple applications of varying strength either be to our advantage 
or disadvantage? Or neither to our advantage or disadvantage? 

G A # 39) As stated in your question, an eligible applicant may only receive a total award 
of $100,000 regardless of the number of NYSDOL programs for which it applies. If an applicant 
submits multiple applications requesting total funding of more than $100,000, then its funding 
requests and number of trainees will be proportionately reduced to meet the funding threshold 
requirement stated in the Request for Proposal. For example, if two units or parts of one legal 
entity (same Federal Employee Identification Number-FEIN) apply for two NYSDOL programs, 
each for $100,000, with the number of planned trainees as 50 and 30, then each funding 
request will be proportionately reduced to $50,000 for 25 trainees and $50,000 for 15 trainees.  

Applications unable to remain viable with the reduced funding will not proceed to contract 
execution. Therefore, it is highly recommended that applicants keep the cost and scope of 
applications within the $100,000 award amount. An eligible applicant may chose to submit 
multiple applications of varying strength or pick the strongest application.    

As stated in the CFA 6.0 RFP (section IV.B.), you may request assistance from the NYS Career 
Center Business Services Representatives during development of your 6.0 proposal. Contact 
information for the representative in your region is available in this factsheet. 

G Q #40) The state specifically prohibits MS Office training (MS Word, MS Excel, MS Outlook, & 
MS PowerPoint) from grant funding. Would MS Project be an acceptable class? 

G A # 40) Per the Request for Proposal (RFP) section II.B., stand alone Microsoft Office 
applications and other basic software applications are not allowable under the Consolidated 
Funding Application (CFA).  MS Project, as a stand alone training course, is also not allowable 
under CFA 6.0.  If MS Project will be utilized as part of a concrete occupational skills training 
course, it may be included.  Occupational skills training is defined as instruction conducted in a 

http://www.labor.ny.gov/cfa
https://www.labor.ny.gov/formsdocs/factsheets/pdfs/p469.pdf
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classroom setting, designed to provide individuals with, or upgrade them in, the skills required 
to perform a specific job or group of jobs needed by a business. 

G Q #41) We began by filling out a Consolidated Funding Application online and we hit a step 
informing us that in order to complete the application, we'd have to get pre-qualified on at 
another website called the NY Grants Gateway.  We followed all of the steps to our account login 
for Grants Gateway, including submitting our registration and W-9 forms, DUNS# and SFS# among 
other steps.  When were finally able to login, we clicked the Organizations tab in the top right 
column to update our organization's information, and received the following page error: You must 
choose the state agency from the list below that your organization has had the most contracts 
with in the last three years. If you have never had a contract with any of these agencies, choose 
the state agency you anticipate contracting with in the future."  Without being able to select the 
agency we are attaching our pre-qualification application to, Grants Gateway will neither let us 
save the information we fill out beyond this point nor advance to any other area of the 
application that requires completion. Please advise. 

G A # 41) You would need to contact Grants Gateway for assistance moving forward in 
their pre-qualification process.  The contact information for Grants Gateway is: 

Hours: Monday thru Friday 8am to 8pm 
Phone: 1-800-820-1890 
Email: helpdesk@agatesoftware.com 

New Questions as of 7/8/16 start below: 

G Q #42) If a prospective trainee is an Adult worker but can also qualify as a Dislocated Worker, 
can the Local Workforce Development Board contracting under the CFA use their local Adult 
monies to pay for the initial training and be reimbursed with the Dislocated Worker CFA grants 
funds? 

G A # 42) No.  Using local federal WIOA formula funds to pay for the initial expenditures 
would cause issues with the local board approved budget for formula funds, and may conflict 
with the policies for the use of local formula funds, such as local training caps.  However, if a 
Local Workforce Development Board (LWDB) is a not-for-profit corporation functioning as the 
fiscal agent, they can get may receive an advance of 25% of the requested Consolidated Funding 
Application (CFA) funding.  With the advance, an awardee may begin paying bills and when 
NYSDOL is provided with vouchers, the advance amount is replenished.  At the end of the 
contract NYSDOL will stop paying out the vouchers to recover the advance amount. 

If the LWDB is not incorporated, and funding is instead managed by a unit of the Chief Elected 
Official (CEO) grant recipient’s government, it will not eligible for an advance because 
governmental entities are not eligible for advances.  Non-federal funds may be used by the 
LWDB to pay for initial CFA contract costs, subject to vouchering and reimbursement by 
NYSDOL.  However, please note the contracts are for the duration of one year, so the services 
can be scheduled, paid for, and reimbursed incrementally over this period of time.  As such, it is 
recommended that governmental applicants consider their non-federal cash flow when 
submitting applications. 

G Q #43) Trainings or services related to career pathways, employability skills development, 
and job placement and retention can be funded through this RFP, as part of the tuition rate of the 

mailto:helpdesk@agatesoftware.com
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occupational skills training course(s), but not as standalone training course(s). Because these are 
functions of the counselors in the Career Centers, can staff time be charged against the grant?  If 
no, would that be an example of leveraged funds? 

G A # 43) Trainings or services related to career pathways, employability skills 
development, and job placement and retention, which may include staff time of counselors in 
the Career Centers, can be charged to the grant, but must be included in the tuition rate of the 
occupational skills training course(s).  However, an applicant may also choose not to include 
staff time in the tuition rate and instead include it as leveraged resources. 

G Q #44) We are applying for funding to support the tuition for various courses to train 
dislocated workers.  The budget portion of the on-line CFA provides a drop down for only five 
courses.  If we are requesting funding for more than five courses, should we repeat using the drop 
down, using the same sequence of CFA Course 1, CFA Course 2, etc.? 

G A # 44) The CFA 6.0 Portal does not allow for entering more than 5 occupational skills 
training courses for the UWT and SPT programs.  We suggest the following workaround so an 
applicant can request funding for more than 5 courses: please select “CFA Course 1” from the 
“Use” Column for every course after the first 5 courses and in the “Indicate Source/Comments” 
column, please indicate the actual number of the course and its name.  To provide the leveraged 
funding of any course after the first 5 courses, also select “CFA Course 1” from the “Use” 
Column and provide the correct course name and number in the “Indicate Source/Comments” 
column, as highlighted in yellow in the table below. 

Use Source Amount Indicate Source/Comments 

CFA Course 1 CFA(Federal) $30,000 Name of Course 1:IT Networking 

CFA Course 1 Leveraged $15,000 Name of Course 1:IT Networking, Private 
donations 

CFA Course 2… 
   

CFA Course 3… 
   

CFA Course 4… 
   

CFA Course 5… 
   

CFA Course 1 CFA(Federal) $26,000 This is actually Course number 6. Name of 
Course 6: Welding 

CFA Course 1 Leveraged $15, 000 This is actually Course number 6. Name of 
Course 6: Welding, County Grant 

CFA Course 1 CFA(Federal) $6,000 This is actually Course number 7. Name of 
Course 7: ITA A+ 

G Q #45) The budget section does not seem to provide a method to calculate multiple 
enrollments in a single course.  For example, if a course costs $2,000 and we are requesting $1,000 
under the CFA and leveraging 1,000 from others sources, these amounts can be accurately 
reflected for a single enrollee only; however, there does not seem to be an option to reflect the 
costs for two or more enrollees in the same course.  How may these additional costs be reflected?  
Please advise. 
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G A # 45) In the CFA portal budget table, the third “Amount” column is for the total 
funding request for an occupational skills training course.  For example, for Course 1, if you plan 
to request $2,000 per prospective trainee from CFA funding and $1,000 of leveraged funding per 
trainee, your total funding request for Course 1 will be $2,000 multiplied by the anticipated 
number of trainees for Course 1.  Likewise, the total amount of leveraged funding for Course 1 
will be $1,000 multiplied by the anticipated number of trainees for Course 1. 

Please note: 

 You need to provide itemized funding requests or leveraged amounts for Supportive 
Services, Books and Training Materials, Credentialing Exam Fees, and Software to 
Deliver Training(s) as a total for all the courses offered, if applicable. 

 In the CFA Portal, you will need to provide the total number of dislocated worker 
trainees across all courses for Special Populations Training (SPT) and Unemployed 
Worker Training (UWT) program in Question #5886. 

G Q #46) We are a not-for-profit entity interested in applying for funding through the CFA.  The 
CFA RFPs cap the indirect cost rate at 10%, but we have a different approved negotiated federal 
indirect cost rate.  Please clarify which rate will be used. 

G A # 46) For the Consolidated Funding Application (CFA) 6.0 Special Populations Training 
(SPT) and Unemployed Worker Training (UWT) programs, the relationship created between 
NYSDOL and the applicant is one of a sub-recipient.  Funding for administrative costs, including 
indirect costs, to a sub-recipient is warranted.  The indirect cost rate will be set at 10% unless 
the applicant has an approved federally recognized indirect cost rate negotiated with the 
Federal government.  This federally approved rate could be more or less than 10%.  In those 
instances the federally approved rate will be used. 

Given the Governor’s CFA priority of maximizing training dollars, NYSDOL will not negotiate 
indirect cost rates. 

Administrative costs, direct and indirect, are not applicable to the Existing Employee Training 
(EET) and New Hire Training (NHT) programs.  Awards under these programs do not create a 
sub-recipient relationship between the applicant and NYSDOL, making payment of 
administrative costs unwarranted. 

All RFPs have been amended to reflect this guidance. 

Note that the 10% indirect cost rate is calculated as a percentage of the Modified Total Direct 
Costs (MTDC) associated with the applicant’s program.  The definition of MTDC can be found at 
https://fawiki.fws.gov/pages/viewpage.action?pageId=24707431. 

New Questions as of 7/22/16 start below: 

G Q #47) Q_5815 - Was the proposal developed before conducting an assessment of training 
needs.?  Can you explain this question a bit farther? 

G A # 47) The proposal, also known as the Consolidated Funding Application (CFA), should 
be based on the assessment of training needs of your existing employees.  As the assessment 

https://fawiki.fws.gov/pages/viewpage.action?pageId=24707431
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should be conducted before developing the proposal, the response for this question must be 
“No” to continue with the application. 

You will not be able to continue with the username and token you have already created or 
resubmit the threshold question. You will need to register with a new token and start a brand 
new application as the assessment threshold question was answered as "Yes." 

G Q #48)  On some of the forms it asks about my employees.  I have none yet and that is 
why we need the grant to hire teachers.  I do have an LLC.  What do I do? 

G A # 48) Only applicants with two or more employees or the equivalent of two full-time 
employees are eligible to apply. 

The Consolidated Funding Applications (CFA) round 6 Request for Proposals (RFPs) are available 
at the New York State Department of Labor website at www.labor.ny.gov/cfa/. Other useful 
information on the webpage includes: 

 A one-page matrix that explains the difference in the programs.  

 The Questions and Answers  

 Attachments to the application 

Pre-recorded webinars on various CFAs can be found at 
http://regionalcouncils.ny.gov/genericcfa/2016-cfa-materials. 

As noted in Section IV.B. of the RFP, applicants may speak with a New York State Career Center 
Business Services Representative (BSR) for technical assistance or support during the 
development of a proposal.  BSR contact information may be found at 
https://www.labor.ny.gov/formsdocs/factsheets/pdfs/p469.pdf. 

G Q #49) For the Office of the State Comptroller’s Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire, 
Attachment C, our company has a Financial Statement for 2014.  Will this suffice? Or, must we pull 
the statement for 2015 together?  Does our financial data need to be from 2015 or can we use our 
financial data from 2014? 

G A # 49) As noted in Section IV.D. of the Existing Employee Training RFP, attachment 4 
(Vendor Responsibility Applicant Questionnaire) is a required attachment which must be 
submitted with the proposal.  This document must be completed for each round of Consolidated 
Funding Applications.  You cannot use the documentation submitted in 2014. 

The Vendor Responsibility Applicant Questionnaire is a document required by the Office of the 
State Comptroller.  More information regarding the Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire as well 
as contact information can be found at the State Comptroller’s website at 

http://osc.state.ny.us/vendrep/index.htm. 

G Q #50) On the Application for Competitively Bid Contract form, question B asks for 
Compliance with the Attorney General’s Charities Bureau.  The question reads “Have you filed 
with the Attorney General’s Charities Bureau all required periodic or annual written reports on a 
timely basis?”  This question does not apply to my firm which is a for-profit and there is no option 
to indicate “N/A”.  Answering “no” makes it appear that we are not submitting reports on a timely 
basis.  Could you please advise how to answer this appropriately? 

http://www.labor.ny.gov/cfa/
http://regionalcouncils.ny.gov/genericcfa/2016-cfa-materials
https://www.labor.ny.gov/formsdocs/factsheets/pdfs/p469.pdf
http://osc.state.ny.us/vendrep/index.htm
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G A # 50) On the Application for Competitively Bid Contract, the question asking, “Have 
you filed with the Attorney General’s Charities Bureau all required periodic or annual written 
reports on a timely basis?” should be marked “no” by for-profit organizations.  It is understood 
by the New York State Department of Labor (NYSDOL) that the question does not apply to for-
profits entities. 

G Q #51) The Equal Employment Opportunity Staffing Plan (attachment 6) of the CFA asks for a 
“Solicitation/Contract No.”  I cannot find reference to these anywhere.  What should I insert in 
this field? 

G A # 51) For the “Solicitation/Contract No.” field of the Equal Employment Opportunity 
Staffing Plan, please use the five-digit CFA application number assigned to you through the CFA 
Portal. 

G Q #52) The Scoring Tips for Q_5836 states “All for-profit and not-for-profit organizations are 
required to register in the Grants Gateway system in order to enter into a contract with New York 
State…”; however, upon reading the document itself, the document states that New York State 
requires “ not-for-profits to register in the Grants Gateway and complete the Vendor 
Prequalification process in order for proposals to be evaluated.”  Please clarify whether we, as a 
for-profit company, are required to register in the Grants Gateway system. 

G A # 52) As noted in Section II.E., all applicants, including for-profit companies, are 
required to register in the Grants Gateway system.  Not-for-profits must take an additional 
prequalification step in the Grants Gateway system before they can submit their proposal. 

G Q #53) I had several questions on the Planning and Feasibility Studies funding opportunity 
that I was hoping you would be able to help us with. 

G A # 53) Per the CFA Resource Guide, questions on this program should be directed to 
the nearest ESD office, which can be found here: http://esd.ny.gov/RegionalOverviews.html. 

G Q #54) We are a training provider who offers training and full time job placement in a union 
based sheet metal apprentice training program.  We are surprised to find, therefore, that 
“Construction” is not one of the primary sectors listed in Q_4199 of the CFA.  We’ll answer as best 
we can, but we can’t help wondering: are we doing something wrong? 

G A # 54) Q_4199 is a Basic question that all applicants to the Consolidated Funding 
Application (CFA) have to answer; not just those applicants submitting proposals under the four 
New York State Department of Labor (NYSDOL) programs.  Therefore we are not able to 
determine why Construction is not an option for that question.  You would need to direct that 
question to CFA-Programs@ny.gov. 

However, Construction is one of the five priority sectors awarded points under NYSDOL’s CFA 
programs.  The Standard question on priority sectors is Q_5787 in the CFA Portal. 

G Q #55) What is the naturalization requirement and can you link me to legal language? 

Undocumented workers are not eligible to participate in NYSDOL CFA programs. 
Relevant citations of the law and regulations are WIOA Public Law 113-128: Section 
188(a)(5) at https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/PLAW-113publ128/pdf/PLAW-

http://esd.ny.gov/RegionalOverviews.html
mailto:CFA-Programs@ny.gov
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/PLAW-113publ128/pdf/PLAW-113publ128.pdf
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/PLAW-113publ128/pdf/PLAW-113publ128.pdf
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113publ128.pdf and Regulations 20 CFR § 680.210 at 
https://www.doleta.gov/wioa/Docs/wioa-regs-labor-final-rule.pdf. 

G Q #56) We were funded in the last cycle of REDC funding.  We plan to apply again this cycle 
for expansion of our training program.  Is this allowed? 

G A # 55) Applicants can apply as long as they meet the eligibility requirements listed in 
the Consolidated Funding Application Request for Proposals (RFPs) available at 
www.labor.ny.gov/cfa. Eligibility is not dependent on previously received NYSDOL CFA awards. 

RETURN TO TOP 

Existing Employee Training (EET) Questions 

EET Q #1) For the Existing Employee Training (EET) program, is the Job Zone (Column E) required 
in the Master List of Existing Employee attachment based on the current occupation of the trainee 
or the occupation the trainee may enter upon completion of the training? What Job Zones are not 
funded under this training program? 

EET A #1) Yes, for the EET Program Master List of Existing Employees (RFP attachment), 
the applicant should list the current occupational title, O*NET code and Job Zone of each 
trainee, in columns C, D, and E, respectively.  Employees in Job Zones 4 and 5 will not be funded 
under the CFA 6.0 EET and should not be included in the attachment. 

EET Q #2) For the EET Program’s Master List of Existing Employee (RFP attachment 1), are we 
expected to provide a list of all the employees of the business, even if they are in high skills 
occupations and cannot be funded with the program? 

EET A #2) No, the EET Master List of Existing Employee (RFP attachment 1) should include 
only the list of trainees the applicant wants to fund via the CFA and not the list of all employees. 

EET Q #3) After completing an application for Existing Employee Training Program, I received 
notification that we are not eligible. I have attached the responses for your review. Please advise 
why we received this message. 

EET A #3) Please note in Section III.A. of the Existing Employee Training Program RFP, the 
eligible applicants include “for profit business, including LLPs and LLCs, and private not-for-profit 
businesses”.  On the responses document submitted with your question, the first question, 
asking if the applicant is a for profit business, including corporations, LLCs and LLPs, or a not-for-
profit business, is checked no. 

New Questions as of 5/27/16 start below: 

EET Q #4) Can we apply for Existing Employee Training funds to provide the new required 26-
hour training for nail salon workers? 

EET A #4) Basic safety trainings or trainings that are mandated by federal, state or a local 
government (section II.B.4. of the RFP) are not funded with CFAs.  The new required 26-hour 
training for nail salon workers would be an unallowable training under CFA round 6. 

https://www.doleta.gov/wioa/Docs/wioa-regs-labor-final-rule.pdf
https://www.doleta.gov/wioa/Docs/wioa-regs-labor-final-rule.pdf
http://www.labor.ny.gov/cfa
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EET Q #5) What file type should be submitted for Existing Employee Training (EET) Program 
attachment 1? 

EET A #5) Please submit attachment 1, “Master List of Existing Employees”, in an Excel 
format (.exl) and not in a Portable Document Format (.pdf). 

New Questions as of 6/10/16 start below: 

EET Q #6) Can a training provider, applying to the Existing Employee Training (EET) program for 
multiple types of training courses, apply through one application and fully detail both trainings in 
ONE application? 

EET A #6) Yes, training providers can apply in one application for multiple types of training 
courses and as indicated in section V.B.2.8., the applicant must provide the titles and full 
descriptions of every occupational skills training course in the program of training. 

EET Q #7) I am unsure of threshold question #5815.  There is not a formal proposal.  We host 
internal trainings and would like to schedule more trainings with outside vendors.  This would 
include costs for training, book materials and the allowable costs indicated.  Please let me know 
how I should proceed because we do not have a formal proposal for these outside vendor 
trainings just the trainings that we developed internally.   

EET A #7) Threshold question #5815 seeks to confirm that the applicant developed the 
proposal based on an assessment of its employee training needs. In this question, the proposal 
referenced is the applicant's actual request for funds through the CFA. 

Occupational skills training course(s)(described in section II.B of the RFP) from outside vendors 
are allowed under the Existing Employee Training (EET) Program and you will need to provide 
the training cost of the occupational skills training course(s) offered (section V.4 of the RFP).  

EET Q #8) The program description summary in the CFA portal mentions that the Existing 
Employee Training Program is only for existing employees, who might get laid-off without the 
proposed training. Is that correct? The RFP available at www.labor.ny.gov does not say so. Then 
again I am asked to attest in the threshold question that the trainees will not get laid-off within 
one year of receiving the training. I am getting conflicted messages. The one-page matrix on the 
www.labor.ny.gov/cfa page mentions that the EET training is for employees in low and middle 
skills occupations. Please clarify who the training is for and what is the expectation regarding lay-
off? 

EET A #8) The program description for the Existing Employee Training (EET) Program in the 
CFA portal, indicating employees may be laid-off without the training, was outdated prior to 
June 10, 2016. It is now updated to reflect the correct information on the one-page matrix and 
the RFP available at www.labor.ny.gov/cfa.  

To summarize, the EET Program is for training: 

 Existing employees of for-profit or not-for-profit businesses; and  

 To provide occupational skills training(s) to employees in low or middle skills occupations 
(defined as Job Zones 1, 2 or 3 as described in sections II and III of the RFP). 

Applicants must attest to the fact that: 

http://www.labor.ny.gov/
http://www.labor.ny.gov/cfa
http://www.labor.ny.gov/cfa
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 The trainees will not be laid-off within one year of receiving training; and 

 These trainees are existing employees of the applicant business and not independent 
contractors or contracted employees.  

EET Q #9) We are a college that plans to offer a training program that will place workers into 
culinary careers, in partnership with a local Chamber and several regional restaurants, through 
these programs: 
 Unemployed Worker Training 
 Existing Employee  
We want to make sure that as the training provider, we can be the grant applicant.  

EET A #9) Under the Existing Employee Training (EET) Program, the for-profit or not-for-
profit business, that proposes to train their current employees, must be the grant applicant.   
Please note that the proposed occupational skills training course(s) under the EET Program must 
focus on training current employees in low and middle skills occupations.  For more information  
on middle skills occupations, review section III.C.1 of the Request for Proposal (RFP). 

Under the Unemployed Worker Training (UWT) Program, the college, as the training provider, 
must be the grant applicant.  Please note that the prospective trainees must be dislocated 
workers. For the full definition of, and assistance in determining whether someone is a 
dislocated worker, see Attachment 9, Determining Dislocated Workers and Special Populations, 
of this RFP.   The applicant must also receive commitment from businesses to interview the 
trainees for available jobs. Evidence for this commitment must be demonstrated by completing 
the Business Commitment (Attachment 2) of this RFP. 

New Questions as of 6/17/16 start below: 

EET Q #10) What is meant by Job Zone 1, 2 or 3 under Existing Employee Training? 

EET A #10) Table 1: Skill level of occupation based on Job Zones in O*Net and eligible 
trainees under this proposal 

Skill Level of 
Occupation 

Job Zone 
Based on 
O*NET 

Preparation Needed to Work in the Occupation Eligible Trainee  
under this RFP 

Low-skills 1 and 2 Some, little or no preparation needed (typically 
requires high school education or less) 

Yes 

Middle-skills 3 Medium preparation required (typically requires 
more than high school education, training in 
vocational schools, related on-the-job 
experience, or an associate's degree but less 
than a bachelor’s degree) 

Yes 

High-skills 4 and 5 Considerable to extensive preparation needed 
(typically requires  a bachelor’s degree or more 
than a bachelor’s degree) 

No 
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New Questions as of 6/24/16 start below: 

EET Q #11) Please let me know if existing employees who have a bachelor's degree but hold a 
"Middle Level" Position which does not require a bachelor's degree are eligible for funding and if 
an employee without a bachelor's degree but holds an "Upper Level" position, which does require 
a bachelor's degree, would qualify for funding. 

EET A #11) Trainee eligibility, under the Existing Employee Training program, is specific to 
those currently working in low-skills and middle-skills occupations.  An individual’s personal 
educational attainment is not specified.  Eligible trainees are those working in a level 1, 2 or 3 
Job Zone occupation based on O*Net classifications.  Detailed information about the Job Zones 
may be found at 
https://www.onetonline.org/help/online/zones/?_sm_au_=iVV8kWZnSq4MRMWj  

EET Q #12) Under the Existing Employee Training program, does training have to result in a 
credential?  

EET A #12) Proposed trainings, under the EET program, do not have to result in a 
credential.  As noted in question # 10 (Strategies and Implementation) of Section V.B.2 (Program 
Design) of the EET RFP, applicants that “provide the name, description(s) and the authority or 
third party issuer of the specific industry-recognized credential the trainees will receive at the 
conclusion of the training” will receive three points in their application scoring.  In addition, in 
question #13 (Outcomes), applicants that “provide the percentage of trainees who have 
attained an industry-recognized credential with similar occupational skills training course(s) in 
the past” will receive up to another 3 points.  Applicants that choose not to seek these six points 
should be aware that “applications are awarded in rank order beginning with the application(s) 
with the highest total points until the funds allocated to the program are exhausted.” (Method 
of Selection) 

New Questions as of 7/1/16 start below: 

EET Q #13) Will you reimburse for soft skills training in EET? 

EET A #13) Soft-skills training is a vague term that businesses and other entities define 
differently, and depends on the occupation of the trainees. In general, stand alone trainings on 
“soft skills” topics such as communication, team development, conflict resolution, etc. are 
considered unallowable under Existing Employee Training (EET). Other unallowable trainings are 
listed in section II.B of the Request for Proposal (RFP).   

Under the EET Program, funds may only be used for concrete technical/occupational skills 
training courses, books or training materials directly associated with the training, software 
required to deliver the training, and/or credentialing exam fees.  Per the EET RFP, occupational 
skills training is defined as up to one year of classroom training designed to provide participants 
with, or upgrade them in, the skills required to be proficient in a specific job needed by the 
business or a group of businesses (section II.B.1.). 

EET Q #14) Does the EET training program have to include someone with less than an associate’s 
degree? 

https://www.onetonline.org/help/online/zones/?_sm_au_=iVV8kWZnSq4MRMWj
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EET A #14) Trainee eligibility, under the Existing Employee Training (EET) Program, is based 
on the typical education level of an individual in low and middle-skills occupations, and not the 
education level of the trainees.  Low-skills occupations are those that typically require a high 
school education or less, while middle-skills occupations typically require some postsecondary 
education and/or training, but less than a bachelor’s degree.  The postsecondary 
education/training may include an associate’s degree, vocational certificates, significant on-the-
job training, previous work experience or some college. Low and middle-skills occupations are 
determined based on the Job Zone (1, 2 or3) of the occupations, available at 
www.onetonline.org, or described in detail in Attachment 10 to the Request for Proposal (RFP) 
available at www.labor.ny.gov. 

EET Q #15) I would like to know more about the Existing Employee Training grant and 
how I can apply. Is there someone I can call and discuss the details with? 

EET A #15) You may speak with a New York State Career Center Business Representative 
(BSR) for technical assistance or support during the development of a proposal.  BSRs contact 
information may be found at https://labor.ny.gov/formsdocs/factsheets/pdfs/p469.pdf. 

New Questions as of 7/15/16 start below: 

EET Q #16) Does the training provided to our existing employee group need to follow a specific 
format?  We are looking to execute on-the-job, scheduled buddy training sessions over a six-week 
internally developed training program for multiple employees. 

EET A #16) The Existing Employee Training (EET) Program is intended to provide 
occupational skills training to existing employees who are in low and middle-skills occupations 
for job advancement and retention (section I.A. of the Request for Proposal (RFP)).  For training 
conducted by in-house staff, the applicant must have a minimum of two trainees per 
occupational skills training course(s) (section II.B.1. of the RFP). Any format of the training is 
allowed under EET, as long as the number of trainees per course or training is two or more. 

Please note that occupational skills training for this RFP is defined as instruction conducted in a 
classroom setting, either at an outside institution or at the worksite, designed to provide 
individuals with, or upgrade them in, the skills required to perform a specific job or group of jobs 
needed by the business. 

EET Q #17) We are proposing to train a select group of employees once the grant is awarded.  As 
this is a career path that is costly and time consuming, we know we cannot afford to offer this to 
everyone at one time.  How then would we list the employees names on Attachment 1- master 
list? 

EET A #17) In your application, please provide the names, titles, O*NET Codes, and Job 
Zones (which must be 1, 2, or 3) of the employees you anticipate will participate in the training, 
if selected for an award.  Based on your business needs, when the contract is developed, if 
necessary you will be able to train different employees than the individuals you list in 
Attachment 1- Master List, as long as those employees are employed in middle-skills 
occupations. 

http://www.onetonline.org/
http://www.labor.ny.gov/
https://labor.ny.gov/formsdocs/factsheets/pdfs/p469.pdf


CFA 6.0 Q&A  Page 22 

EET Q #18) While employees are completing their training, we will need to staff the workplace in 
their absence.  Does the grant allow for reimbursement for the cost of employee coverage while 
these employees are attending trainings? 

EET A #18) No, the grant does not allow reimbursement of the cost of employee coverage 
while trainees are attending training. However, the cost of employee coverage may be included 
as leveraged funding to get additional points. 

EET Q #19) We are having trouble finding an O*Net Code for a specific employee title.  All have an 
Associate’s Degree, some a Master’s.  Can you advise? 

EET A #19) The O*NET Code of the employee should be based on the job duties they 
perform.  The organizational title of the employee does not need to be the same as the O*NET 
title. You will need to find an O*NET code that matches the job duties of the specific employee 
title as closely as possible. 

Also, the Job Zone (1, 2 or 3) that relates to the typical education and work experience required 
for the job should be based on the selected O*NET Code and not what education the employee 
actually has. For example, an employee with a Master’s degree may be working in a middle-skills 
occupation, which typically requires less than a bachelor’s degree. 

New Questions as of 7/22/16 start below: 

EET Q #20) Can we obligate employees, who receive LPW training, to continue employment as an 
LPN for a set period of time after acquiring the LPN degree?  If employees are obligated, can we 
recoup the cost of training, from the said employee, if they fail to meet the obligation? 

EET A #20) Trainees in the Existing Employee Training (EET) Program cannot be mandated 
to remain with the business for a set time period upon completion of the training.  If the 
trainee(s) leave the business during or upon completion of the occupational skills training, they 
also cannot be mandated to reimburse the business for the cost of the training. 

EET Q #21) When developing the training program, are employers allowed to use online training 
formats as course types?  For example, an online class from an industry-recognized organization 
that offers 10–12 hours of interactive, self-paced learning which is a lesser expensive option than 
a 2-day classroom format. Would this be reimbursable under the EET program? 

EET A #21) For the Existing Employee Training (EET) Program, occupational skills training 
must take place in a classroom setting, either at an outside institution or at the worksite.  
Training can also be a distance learning or online course, but the trainee must be located in New 
York State and cannot contribute to the cost of training (section II.B.1. of the Request for 
Proposal). 

EET Q #22) Can we include non-published tuition rates offered in-house as well as with a training 
provider? 

EET A #22) For the Consolidated Funding Application (CFA) Existing Employee Training (EET) 
Program, tuition rates, whether published or non-published, are not required.  Per section II.B.1. 
of the EET Request for Proposal (RFP), in-house training will be reimbursed based on the in-
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house trainer wages for the time spent in providing the training.  Occupational skills training 
provided by outside vendors or subcontractors may be reimbursed based on a per trainee cost. 

EET Q #23) Is there absolutely no possibility of incorporating funding from this opportunity to 
cover for the wages of the trainees that would have to be paid for since this would incentivize our 
business to go forward with sending trainees to a different location where these specialized 
trainings are offered? 

EET A #23) Funding for the EET Program cannot be used to cover the wages of trainees who 
will go to a different location for training.  Per section II.B.1. of the RFP, training may take place 
outside of NYS, but travel and salary costs must be paid by the applicant business, and trainees 
must be compensated at no less than their normal rate of pay while attending training. 

EET Q #24) Can ineligible items be used as leveraged funding? For example, could the 
transportation, lodging and meals for trainers be included as leveraged funding? 

EET A #24) Yes, items that are ineligible for Consolidated Funding Application (CFA) funding 
may be paid for using the leveraged funding resources the applicant is able to secure.  There are 
no CFA restrictions on leveraged funding and those additional funding resources may be used 
for any item(s) the applicant wishes. 

RETURN TO TOP 

New Hire Training (NHT) Questions 

NHT Q #1) In regards to the New Hire Training Program funds under Education/Workforce 
Development, would the State consider funding a third party non-profit that could then facilitate 
regional training for existing employees of other organizations? 

NHT A #1) As noted in Section III.A. of the NHT RFP, “consultants, training providers, trade 
organizations and other third party entities are not eligible to apply for CFA-NHT Program funds 
on behalf of other organizations”.  Training providers are eligible to apply for Unemployed 
Worker Training (UWT) and Special Populations Training (SPT) funding. 

NHT Q #2) In regards to the New Hire Training Program, please confirm that these funds will be 
available to eligible healthcare providers including hospitals. 

NHT A #2) Healthcare providers, including hospitals, would be eligible to apply for training 
program funds if they meet the applicant eligibility criteria as stated in each of the funding 
announcements. 

New Questions as of 7/1/16 start below: 

NHT Q #3) Do the NHT and Special Population Training Programs require you to create a new 
training program or use an existing one? 

NHT A #3) The New Hire Training (NHT) Program is designed to fund on-the-job training to 
newly hired dislocated workers in need of skills upgrade training for their job responsibilities 
immediately after hire.  By its nature, the NHT Program calls for training programs specifically 
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tailored to the needs of each individual trainee.  For this reason, a training plan used in the past 
must be modified to meet the learning requirements of the individual(s) who will be hired. 

The Special Populations Training (SPT) Program funds occupational skills training course(s) for 
dislocated workers seeking employment. An existing training program may be utilized under 
SPT, or new training may be developed.  Please note that per the SPT Program Request for 
Proposal (RFP), funding may only be utilized for costs directly related to the provision of 
training, which does not include curriculum development (section II.B.5.). 

NHT Q #4) Is there a cap on the wage reimbursement for NHT? 

NHT A #4) Per section II.B. of the New Hire Training (NHT) Program Request for Proposal 
(RFP), the program provides reimbursement to the applicant business of up to 50% of the wage 
rate of the participant (section II.B.). 

NHT Q #5) How do I figure out what jobs are low skilled and medium skilled? 

NHT A #5) The skill level of an occupation is determined based on the Job Zone of the 
occupation as listed in the Occupational Information Network (O*NET).  O*NET can be found 
online at http://www.onetonline.org/.  For additional information on low and middle-skills 
occupations, see section III.C.1. of the Existing Employee Training (EET) Request for Proposal 
(RFP) and Attachment 10 found at www.labor.ny.gov/cfa.   

NHT Q #6) Are these grant monies also being used to fund GED (sic) programs? 

NHT A #6) Consolidated Funding Application (CFA) funds cannot be used to fund GED or 
other high school equivalency programs.  These programs are not considered occupational skills 
training, which is defined as up to one year of classroom training designed to provide 
participants with, or upgrade them, in the specific skills required to be proficient in a job needed 
by the business or group of businesses (Request for Proposal section II.B.). 

New Questions as of 7/8/16 start below: 

NHT Q #7) In regard to Question #5814, "If any of the workers targeted for training in this 
proposal are laid-off within one year of the end date of the resulting contract, the business 
understands that it will be liable for the reimbursement to the State of the cost of the training 
associated with the laid-off worker(s).", we are contemplating a program in which the workers 
(unemployed veterans) will definitely be laid off because our employers are seasonal and tourist-
driven.  Does this eliminate us from applying for the grant? 

NHT A #7) A No response to threshold question #5814 would deem an application 
ineligible for the New Hire Training (NHT) program.  As noted in Section III.B. of the NHT RFP, 
"Seasonal positions or positions based on the addition of commission or tips to a sub-minimum 
wage base salary are ineligible for CFA-NHT reimbursement". 

New Questions as of 7/22/16 start below: 

NHT Q #8) We are a small for-profit company submitting a proposal for the NHT program. 
Regarding question Q_5885, “Provide the percentage of trainees who are part of a special 
population, defined as an individual with a barrier to employment…”, please clarify - are we being 

http://www.onetonline.org/
http://www.labor.ny.gov/cfa
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asked to provide the percentage of trainees we plan to hire for our training program who are a 
part of a special population? 

NHT A #8) Yes, Q_5885 regarding the percentage of trainees who are part of a special 
population, requires the percentage of trainees the business plans to hire by the start of the 
occupational skills training course(s) who are part of a special population.  For the full list of 
special populations, please see Attachment 9 to the Request for Proposal (RFP), Determining 
Dislocated Workers and Special Populations. 

RETURN TO TOP 

Special Population Training (SPT) Questions 

SPT Q #1) In regards to the CFA – Special Populations Training RFP issued by the New York State 
Department of Labor, the RFP states that this funding is open to nonprofit training providers. Is this 
open to all training providers, or only those on the Eligible Training Provider List? 

SPT A #1) As stated in the RFP, eligible applicants for the Special Populations Training 
(SPT) funding include Local Workforce Development Boards (LWDBs) and private for-profit and 
private not-for-profit training providers.  This is not limited to training providers on the Eligible 
Training Provider list. 

SPT Q #2) For attachment 2, Business Commitment, what O*NET Codes and occupations are to 
be provided for Special Population Training (SPT) programs? 

SPT A #2) For SPT, in columns B and C of the Business Commitment form (RFP attachment 
2), the applicant must provide occupational titles and appropriate O*NET codes for occupations 
businesses committed to interview the trainees as part of the program. 

SPT Q #3) What documents do we need access for WIOA Regional Plan/State Plan? 

SPT A #3)  WIOA Combined State Plan is available at: 
http://labor.ny.gov/workforce/swib/swibplan.shtm. WIOA Regional Plans from previous years 
are available at: http://labor.ny.gov/workforcenypartners/lwda/regional-plans.shtm. WIOA 
Regional Plans for program year 2016 will be posted on the same web page in June/July 2016. 
Applicants are encouraged to review the most recent previous year plans before the submission 
of the CFA 6.0. 

SPT Q #4) How is training provider defined? 

SPT A #4)  Under the CFA 6.0, a training provider is any for-profit or non-profit entity that 
has demonstrated effectiveness in providing occupational-skills training courses and 
employability skills, career pathways, job placement and retention, and follow-up 
services/trainings for unemployed workers.  For more information, see Program Services (section 
III.D.) of the Request for Proposals. 

SPT Q #5) How is an occupational skills training defined? 

http://labor.ny.gov/workforce/swib/swibplan.shtm
http://labor.ny.gov/workforcenypartners/lwda/regional-plans.shtm
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SPT A #5) Occupational skills training is defined as up to one year of instruction in a 
classroom setting designed to provided participants with the skills required to be proficient in a 
specific job needed by a business or a group of businesses. 

SPT Q #6) Does the organization need to be on the Eligible Training Provider List? 

SPT A #6)  No, an organization does not need to be on the Eligible Training Provider List 
(ETPL) to apply to the CFA 6.0. 

New Questions as of 5/27/16 start below: 

SPT Q #7) Can you clarify how the SPT (Special Populations Training Program) CFA differs from 
the UWT (Unemployed Worker Training Program) CFA? 

SPT A #7) For CFA 6.0, the Special Populations Training (SPT) Program and Unemployed 
Worker Training (UWT) Program are very similar.  Both programs serve unemployed workers who 
must also be dislocated workers.  For the definition of dislocated worker and full list of special 
populations, please see Determining Dislocated Workers and Special Populations (attachment 9) 
of the Request for Proposals (RFP).  The two points mentioned below are the only differences in 
the SPT and UWT programs:  

1. Under SPT a minimum of 80% of trainees must belong to one or more special 
populations. For example: 30% of an applicant’s trainees may be displaced homemakers and 
50% of trainees may be older individuals, totaling the 80% trainee requirement of the SPT 
program.  

2. UWT program applicants will receive one additional point if they choose to train 21% to 
50% of trainees from one or more special populations and receive two additional points if 
51% to 100% of trainees are part of one or more special populations. Please see section 
V.B.2 (4) on page 17 of the UWT RFP for these evaluation criteria.  

The SPT program is more relevant to applicants who have expertise in serving special 
population(s).  These applicants might be able to provide customized services and opportunities 
to meet the unique needs of the special population(s).  Applicants could best decide whether 
they should apply to SPT or UWT based on their organizational mission and expertise serving and 
recruiting one or more special population(s); and/or percent of special population(s) they 
envision in their training program. 

SPT Q #8) Can a training provider (who meets eligibility criteria) ALSO be the business 
committed to interviewing and possibly hiring trainees? 

SPT A #8) As stated in Section V.B.2, all Special Population Training applicants must 
document and submit the Business Commitment in Attachment 2.  This documentation must 
include the business name and contact information, occupational title(s), O*NET code, number of 
available positions at the business, and the number of trainees the business has agreed to 
interview.  If the training provider has available positions that match the proposed occupational 
skills training, then the training provider can also be listed on the business commitment 
documentation with all associated fields completed. 
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SPT Q #9) What file type should be submitted for Special Populations Training (SPT) Program 
attachment 2? 

SPT A #9) Please submit attachment 2, Business Commitment”, in an Excel (.exl) format 
and not in a Portable Document Format (.pdf). 

SPT Q #10) Is there potential funding for a NYS supported training program that will help grow 
the capacity of employment for people with and without disabilities? 

SPT A #10) Yes, the New York State Department of Labor has four current funding 
opportunities for supported training programs through the Consolidated Funding Applications.  
The four Request for Proposals (RFPs) are available at the New York State Department of Labor 
website at www.labor.ny.gov/cfa/ or they can be accessed after logging into CFA portal at 
https://apps.cio.ny.gov/apps/cfa/.  The four RFPs include: 

1. Existing Employee Training (EET) 
2. New Hire Training (NHT) 
3. Special Populations Training (SPT) 
4. Unemployed Worker Training (UWT) 

As stated in section II.B. (Use of Funds), Special Populations Training funds are “intended to fund 
occupational skills training course(s) for unemployed, dislocated workers, who are seeking 
employment.  To assist trainees in completing the occupational skills training course(s), attaining 
industry-recognized credentials, if applicable, and entering and retaining employment, as part of 
the tuition rate of the occupational skills training course(s), the program also funds additional 
services including career and employability skills development, and job placement and retention 
services. These additional services may be part of the occupational skills training course(s) but 
cannot be funded as standalone services. CFA funds may also be used to provide supportive 
services to trainees.” 

Of particular note, the Special Populations Training specifies in the Applicant Eligibility section 
(III.A) that “at least 80% of trainees must be from one or more special populations.”  Section III.B. 
(Trainee Eligibility) notes “Special populations include individuals with barriers to employment as 
defined in the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA), which includes: displaced 
homemakers, low income individuals, Native Americans, individuals with disabilities (including 
youth with disabilities and recovering drug addicts), older individuals, individuals currently and 
formerly involved in justices system, homeless individuals or homeless youth, youth who are in or 
have aged out of the foster care system, individuals who are English language learners, 
individuals who have low levels of literacy, individuals facing substantial cultural barriers, migrant 
and seasonal farm workers, and single parents (including single pregnant women).” 

Additionally, please note: if applying for more than one of the funds available under this CFA, 
“funds for two, three, or all four programs cannot be combined to use on the same trainees.  For 
example, an applicant may not use CFA-NHT funds to train a new worker on-the-job and then use 
CFA-UWT funds to send the same worker to classroom training.  Each group of trainees must 
remain separate and distinct and be trained solely under one NYSDOL CFA program.” (Section 
II.B.) 

SPT Q #11) Do eligible trainees have to be both dislocated workers as defined under the five 
categories put forth under Attachment 9, and from a special population, or can they just be from one 
of the special populations but not dislocated? 

http://www.labor.ny.gov/cfa/
https://apps.cio.ny.gov/apps/cfa/
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SPT A #11) 100% of the trainees have to be dislocated workers and under SPT, at least 80% 
of those dislocated workers must be from special populations.  As noted in Section III.B. of the 
Special Populations Training (SPT) RFP, “Trainees must be dislocated workers in special 
populations who are seeking occupational skills in order to qualify for full-time or part-time 
employment.”  The parameters for eligible applicants in the SPT RFP indicate applicants must 
intend to serve “at least 80% of trainees” “from one or more special populations”.  Please refer 
to Attachment 9, Determining Dislocated Workers and Special Populations, to determine if a 
prospective trainee is a dislocated worker in a special population. 

New Questions as of 6/3/16 start below: 

SPT Q #12) Is there information available on past recipients of Special Populations Training (CFA- 
SPT) program funding? 

SPT A #12) For 2015 Consolidated Funding Application grants, you will find awardee 
information at 
https://www.governor.ny.gov/sites/governor.ny.gov/files/atoms/files/REDCAwardsBooklet2015_
2.pdf.  We suggest using the “FIND” feature in your internet provider tools or if downloading the 
document, in your PDF reader to search for “SPTP”.  This will locate all grant awards for the 
Special Populations Training program. 

New Questions as of 6/10/16 start below: 

SPT Q #13) If a training provider trains dislocated workers under the Special Populations Training 
(SPT) program, can they interview and hire trainees? 

SPT A #13) Yes, training providers applying for SPT program funding can list their business 
as a business committed to interview trainees as required in Attachment 2. 

SPT Q #14) In the RFP for this year’s CFA, the DOL Training Grants section indicates that the 
qualifying organizations who can apply include Workforce Development Boards and training 
organizations.  Our organization is a 501c3 non-profit that provides job placement, job coaching, 
supportive employment services and vocational services to the community. 

We are developing a Training Center, which is the reason we are applying for a grant.  We will be the 
Training Organization for two training tracks under the categories of Unemployed Workers and 
Special Populations. Do we qualify to apply under these two programs? 

SPT A #14) As a training provider, a not-for-profit is eligible to apply for the Unemployed 
Worker Training (UWT) Program and the Special Populations Training (SPT) Program.  Please 
ensure that the proposed trainings are concrete occupational skills training course(s) as described 
in sections II and III of the Request for Proposals (RFP) available at www.labor.ny.gov/cfa/. 

A not-for-profit organization may apply for the Existing Employee Training (EET) Program if it is 
training its current employees, and may apply for the New Hire Training (NHT) Program if it plans 
to hire a dislocated worker for training. 

Please see a comparison chart of all four programs at www.labor.ny.gov/cfa. Also, a 
comprehensive list of questions for all of the DOL programs is available at 
https://apps.cio.ny.gov/apps/cfa/help.cfm?section=programquestions/. 

https://www.governor.ny.gov/sites/governor.ny.gov/files/atoms/files/REDCAwardsBooklet2015_2.pdf
https://www.governor.ny.gov/sites/governor.ny.gov/files/atoms/files/REDCAwardsBooklet2015_2.pdf
http://www.labor.ny.gov/cfa/
http://www.labor.ny.gov/cfa
https://apps.cio.ny.gov/apps/cfa/help.cfm?section=programquestions/
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New Questions as of 6/17/16 start below: 

SPT Q #15) Would non- profit groups that provide services for individuals with disabilities be 
eligible to apply for DOL Regional Council training grants?  Training would be for adults with 
disabilities to train them for part-time employment and individuals would receive workforce 
readiness, job coaching types of training. 

SPT A #15) Part time positions are OK under the Special Pops grant, and the non-profit does 
not need to be on the Established Training Provider List (ETPL). 

Job readiness training is allowed but it must be conducted in addition to a concrete occupational 
skill that will lead to employment.  And they must have a commitment from a business to hire 
these individuals post training. 

New Questions as of 6/24/16 start below: 

SPT Q #16) For SPT and UWT programs, question 10 under evaluation criteria asks for information 
examinations the trainees must complete as part of the course. Will it be okay to have assessments? 

SPT A #16) The examinations may include any type of formal evaluations conducted to 
assess the skills gained by the trainees. For example, projects, written documents, products, 
tests, or practical exams that are graded or evaluated. 

SPT Q #17) My agency is looking at the Special Populations Training Program RFP, and wondering 
about the criteria that will be used to document the status of self-employed and displaced 
homemakers under the Dislocated Worker category when they go to the Workforce 1 center.  
Specifically, if we have candidates for training who were previously self-employed as caregivers but 
have unreported employment, would we be able to have them enroll in the program? Also, for the 
homemakers, can you please define what is meant by “no longer supported by that income?” Does 
that mean that the supporting family member has to have become unemployed, or could the 
household expenses have grown to the point where that income is not meeting their expense? 

SPT A #17) Displaced homemakers will need to self-attest that they are displaced 
homemakers. “No longer supported by that income” may refer to, but is not limited to: 

• The homemaker’s spouse becoming unemployed; 

• A spouse’s death; 

• The family receiving public benefits; and/or 

• Divorce 

To document status as self-employed, the previously self-employed individuals will need to: 

• Self-attest that they were self-employed; 

• Provide details of their business; and 

• Provide information on past work history. 

Ultimately, the Career Center staff will determine whether or not the displaced homemaker 
and/or previously self-employed individuals are eligible as dislocated workers based on the self-
attestations and additional information provided. 
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As stated in the Request for Proposal (section IV.B.) you may get assistance from the NYS Career 
Center Business Services Representatives during development of your proposal. Contact 
information of the Representative of your region is available at 
https://www.labor.ny.gov/formsdocs/factsheets/pdfs/p469.pdf. 

SPT Q #18) The definition of dislocated workers is clearly defined as a person who has been laid 
off or fired from a position, is eligible for or has exhausted unemployment benefits, was self-
employed but lost their business, was a homemaker re-entering the workforce, or was the spouse of a 
member of the Armed Forces.  How does this overlap with special populations, as many youth aging 
out of foster care, criminal justice involved, substance abuse recovery, TANF and SNAP recipients, etc. 
won't align with these definitions of dislocated workers.  Can you give me an example of the types 

of individuals in UWT and SPT who are being served? 

SPT A #18) The Workforce Innovation Opportunity Act funding source for CFA 6.0 
Unemployed Worker Training (UWT), Special Populations Training (SPT), and New Hire Training 
(NHT) requires that funding must be spent on dislocated workers.  For SPT a minimum of 80% of 
the dislocated worker trainees must belong to one or more of the special populations listed in 
the Request for Proposal (RFP). 

Many individuals with minimal work history or experience, which may include youth from a 
variety of circumstances, such as aging out of foster care, criminal justice involved, substance 
abuse recovery, TANF and SNAP recipients, etc., may not align with the definitions of dislocated 
workers (Attachment 9).  If your organization can find such youth that are also dislocated 
workers, they can be served under the RFPs.  Awarded applicants are responsible for recruitment 
of the dislocated worker trainees and must verify their dislocated worker eligibility with the help 
of Career Centers as mentioned in the RFP (section III.C.). 

We are glad that your organization is strategically considering realistic recruitment needs based 
on the funding source. As stated in the RFP (section IV.B.) you may get assistance from the NYS 
Career Center Business Services Representatives during development of your proposal. Contact 
information of the Representative of your region is available at 
https://www.labor.ny.gov/formsdocs/factsheets/pdfs/p469.pdf. 

New Questions as of 7/1/16 start below: 

SPT Q #19) Do the NHT and Special Population Training Programs require you to create a new 
training program or use an existing one? 

SPT A #19) The New Hire Training (NHT) Program is designed to fund on-the-job training to 
newly hired dislocated workers in need of skills upgrade training for their job responsibilities 
immediately after hire.  By its nature, the NHT Program calls for training programs specifically 
tailored to the needs of each individual trainee.  For this reason, a training plan used in the past 
must be modified to meet the learning requirements of the individual(s) who will be hired. 

The Special Populations Training (SPT) Program funds occupational skills training course(s) for 
dislocated workers seeking employment. An existing training program may be utilized under 
SPT, or new training may be developed.  Please note that per the SPT Program Request for 
Proposal (RFP), funding may only be utilized for costs directly related to the provision of 
training, which does not include curriculum development (section II.B.5.). 

https://www.labor.ny.gov/formsdocs/factsheets/pdfs/p469.pdf
http://www.labor.ny.gov/CFA/cfa-6-0-attachment-9-determining-dislocated-workers-and-special-populations.pdf
https://www.labor.ny.gov/formsdocs/factsheets/pdfs/p469.pdf
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SPT Q #20) What age constitutes ‘older worker’ in regard to special populations? 

SPT A #20) According to the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) §3 (39), the 
term “older individual” refers to an individual age 55 or older. 

SPT Q #21) Can my organization be considered the training provider for staff development, for 
special populations? 

SPT A #21) No, the applicant organization cannot provide training for staff development 
under the Special Populations Training (SPT) Program.  The intent of the SPT Program is to 
fund occupational skills training for dislocated workers in special populations who have 
barriers to employment and not for existing staff of the organization. 

If an organization is interested in providing training for staff development, it should consider 
applying to the Existing Employee Training (EET) Program.  Please note that under the EET 
Program, funding is provided to for-profit and not-for-profit businesses to train existing 
workers who will enter or remain in middle-skills occupations.  Middle-skills occupations are 
defined as those that require postsecondary education and/or training but less than a 
bachelor’s degree.  The postsecondary education and/or training may include an associate’s 
degree, vocational certificates, significant on-the-job training, previous work experience, or 
some college. Low and middle-skills occupations are determined based on the Job Zone (1, 2 
or 3) of the occupations, available at www.onetonline.org, or described in detail in 
Attachment 10 to the Request for Proposal (RFP). 

SPT Q #22) For displaced homemakers, does that mean the primary earner has to be fully 
unemployed? 

SPT A #22) Displaced homemakers will need to self-attest that they are displaced 
homemakers. As stated in section III.B. of the Unemployed Worker Training (UWT) and Special 
Populations Training (SPT) Request for Proposal (RFP), “no longer supported by that income” as a 
description of a displaced homemaker may refer to, but is not limited to:  

 The homemaker’s spouse becoming unemployed;  

 A spouse’s death;  

 The family receiving public benefits; and/or  

 Divorce 

Applicants must refer potential trainees to the nearest Career Center where staff will determine 
whether or not the displaced homemaker is eligible as a dislocated worker based on the self-
attestation and any additional information provided. 

SPT Q #23) If you’re a non-profit training provider, can you apply for any of these special 
populations? 

SPT A #23) Yes, if the applicant is a non-profit training provider, it may apply for one or 
more of the special populations it intends to serve under either the Unemployed Worker 
Training (UWT) Program or Special Populations Training (SPT) Program.  Per the SPT Program 
Request for Proposal (RFP), at least 80% of the applicant’s proposed trainees must be from one 
or more of the special populations listed in Attachment 9, Determining Dislocated Workers and 
Special Populations. 

http://www.onetonline.org/
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SPT Q #24) We are a not-for-profit entity interested in applying for funding through the CFA.  The 
CFA RFPs cap the indirect cost rate at 10%, but we have a different approved negotiated federal 
indirect cost rate.  Please clarify which rate will be used. 

SPT A #24) For the Consolidated Funding Application (CFA) 6.0 Special Populations Training 
(SPT) and Unemployed Worker Training (UWT) programs, the relationship created between 
NYSDOL and the applicant is one of a sub-recipient.  Funding for administrative costs, including 
indirect costs, to a sub-recipient is warranted.  The indirect cost rate will be set at 10% unless the 
applicant has an approved federally recognized indirect cost rate negotiated with the Federal 
government.  This federally approved rate could be more or less than 10%.  In those instances the 
federally approved rate will be used. 

Given the Governor’s CFA priority of maximizing training dollars, NYSDOL will not negotiate 
indirect cost rates. 

Administrative costs, direct and indirect, are not applicable to the Existing Employee Training 
(EET) and New Hire Training (NHT) programs.  Awards under these programs do not create a 
sub-recipient relationship between the applicant and NYSDOL, making payment of 
administrative costs unwarranted. 

All RFPs have been amended to reflect this guidance. 

Note that the 10% indirect cost rate is calculated as a percentage of the Modified Total Direct 
Costs (MTDC) associated with the applicant’s program.  The definition of MTDC can be found at 
https://fawiki.fws.gov/pages/viewpage.action?pageId=24707431. 

New Questions as of 7/15/16 start below: 

SPT Q #25) Of page 7 of the SPT RFP, it states supportive service costs are allowable if they “are 
directly attributable to trainees that are funded by this contract and not provided by a third party on a 
referral basis.”  If we were to provide participants with vouchers for emergency drop-in childcare at a 
third-party site, would this be allowable? 

SPT A #25) Supportive services, which may include child care services, are allowable costs 
for reimbursement under CFA round 6.0 (section II.B.3. of the Request for Proposal).  If the 
referral or provision of supportive services by a third party is at some cost to the awardee or the 
voucher has monetary value, the awardee is required to: 

1. Budget funds in the application for such supportive services, including childcare; 

2. Pay the supportive service or childcare provider for the cost of the voucher; 

3. Maintain records to support this payment; and  

4. Maintain documentation to support that the supportive service or childcare cost is 
necessary to enable a trainee to attend training. 

However, if the voucher has no monetary value and/or the cost of the childcare or other 
supportive services is funded by the third party with other resources available to the third party 
at no cost to the awardee, there are no costs to reimburse. 

https://fawiki.fws.gov/pages/viewpage.action?pageId=24707431
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SPT Q #26) The RFP references “Dollars and $ense” and the Self-Sufficiency Estimator as tools to 
introduce to our trainees to help them understand the salaries necessary to support themselves.  Our 
program offers free access to financial counseling for each of our trainees.  Is specifically utilizing 
“Dollars and $ense” and the Self-Sufficiency Estimator a requirement or an activity associated with 
points awarded in the proposal?  

SPT A #26) The evaluation question in the RFP asks how the occupational skills training will 
build awareness of career pathways among trainees (Section B.2. of the UWT and SPT RFP). 
Utilizing “Dollars and $ense” and the Self-Sufficiency Estimator is not a requirement under this 
RFP, but they are suggested tools for implementing the strategy of providing labor market 
information to the trainees.  Applicants are not limited to using these tools. However, utilizing 
the strategies or activities listed in the evaluation is associated with the points awarded for the 
proposal.  If the financial counseling provided by your agency includes provision of labor market 
information to the trainees, then it can be considered for receiving points. 

SPT Q #27) The RFP suggests that the Employability Profile at JobZone is noted as a tool to 
introduce to our trainees as a supportive service.  Our program offers referrals to organizations where 
our trainees can find assistance with childcare, transportation, and housing among other needs.  Is 
specifically utilizing the Employability Profile at JobZone a requirement, or is it an activity associated 
with points awarded in the proposal? 

SPT A #27) The evaluation question in the RFP asks for the strategies the applicant will use 
to offer supportive services to ensure trainees are retained in the occupational skills training and 
the new job they are placed in upon completion of the training (Section B.2. of the UWT and SPT 
RFP). Utilizing the Employability Profile from JobZone is not a requirement under this RFP, but it 
is a suggested tool for implementing provision of supportive services. Applicants are not limited 
to using the tool. However, utilizing the strategies or activities listed in the evaluation question is 
associated with the points awarded for the proposal. 

New Questions as of 7/22/16 start below: 

SPT Q #28) If driver’s training is part of the program would these remedial training courses be 
eligible as reimbursable training expenses? 

SPT A #28) Under the Special Populations Training (SPT) and Unemployed Worker Training 
(UWT) grants, remedial education along with concrete occupational skills training course(s) is 
allowable.  Please see Program Services (section III.D) of the Request for Proposal (RFP) for the 
definition of occupational skills training and other programmatic requirements. 

The cost of driving education is allowable only for trainees who will enter in occupations that 
directly require driving as part of the job.  Training required as part of a federal, state, or local 
government mandate is not allowable under the grants (Section II.B.4 of the RFP).  Thus driving 
education for trainees in occupations, which do not require driving as part of the job, will not be 
allowable under the RFPs. 

SPT Q #29) I am working on the budget section and am wondering if there is a match requirement 
and if so, what is the match percentage. 

SPT A #29) As noted in Section II.C. of the Special Populations Training RFP, “although 
leveraged funds from the applicant are not required, points will be awarded during the scoring 
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process based on the percentage of leveraged funds being used.”  Item 17 of Section V.B.2. notes 
match percentages of 0% to 25% will receive 0 points; 25.01% to 50% will receive 2 points; 
50.01% to 75% will receive 4 points; and 75.01% and up will receive 6 points in scoring. 

SPT Q #30) Do I need an official training status to receive CFA Special Populations for Customized 
Training monies? 

G A # 56) As stated in the Request for Proposals (RFPs) at www.labor.ny.gov/cfa, eligible 
applicants for the Special Populations Training (SPT) funding include Local Workforce 
Development Boards (LWDBs) and private for-profit and private not-for-profit training 
providers.  This is not limited to training providers on the Eligible Training Provider list.  You do 
not need an official training status.  Applicants must have commitment from businesses to 
interview the trainees for employment. 

RETURN TO TOP 

Unemployed Worker Training (UWT) Questions 

UWT Q #1) For attachment 2, Business Commitment, what O*NET Codes and occupations are to 
be provided for Unemployed Worker Training (UWT) programs? 

UWT A #1) For UWT, in columns B and C of the Business Commitment (RFP attachment 2), 
the applicant must provide occupational titles and appropriate O*NET codes for occupations 
businesses committed to interview the trainees as part of the program. 

UWT Q #2) What documents do we need access for WIOA Regional Plan/State Plan? 

UWT A #2)  WIOA Combined State Plan is available at: 
http://labor.ny.gov/workforce/swib/swibplan.shtm. WIOA Regional Plans from previous years 
are available at: http://labor.ny.gov/workforcenypartners/lwda/regional-plans.shtm. WIOA 
Regional Plans for program year 2016 will be posted on the same web page in June/July 2016. 
Applicants are encouraged to review the most recent previous year plans before the submission 
of the CFA 6.0. 

UWT Q #3) How is training provider defined? 

UWT A #3)  Under the CFA 6.0, a training provider is any for-profit or non-profit entity that 
has demonstrated effectiveness in providing occupational-skills training courses and 
employability skills, career pathways, job placement and retention, and follow-up 
services/trainings for unemployed workers.  For more information, see Program Services (section 
III.D.) of the Request for Proposals. 

UWT Q #4) How is an occupational skills training defined? 

UWT A #4) Occupational skills training is defined as up to one year of instruction in a 
classroom setting designed to provided participants with the skills required to be proficient in a 
specific job needed by a business or a group of businesses. 

UWT Q #5) Does the organization need to be on the Eligible Training Provider List? 

http://www.labor.ny.gov/cfa
http://labor.ny.gov/workforce/swib/swibplan.shtm
http://labor.ny.gov/workforcenypartners/lwda/regional-plans.shtm
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UWT A #5)  No, an organization does not need to be on the Eligible Training Provider List 
(ETPL) to apply to the CFA 6.0. 

New Questions as of 5/27/16 start below: 

UWT Q #6) Can you clarify how the SPT (Special Populations Training Program) CFA differs from 
the UWT (Unemployed Worker Training Program) CFA? 

UWT A #6) For CFA 6.0, the Special Populations Training (SPT) Program and Unemployed 
Worker Training (UWT) Program are very similar.  Both programs serve unemployed workers who 
must also be dislocated workers.  For the definition of dislocated worker and full list of special 
populations, please see Determining Dislocated Workers and Special Populations (attachment 9) 
of the Request for Proposals (RFP).  The two points mentioned below are the only differences in 
the SPT and UWT programs:  

1. Under SPT a minimum of 80% of trainees must belong to one or more special 
populations. For example: 30% of an applicant’s trainees may be displaced homemakers and 
50% of trainees may be older individuals, totaling the 80% trainee requirement of the SPT 
program. 

2. UWT program applicants will receive one additional point if they choose to train 21% to 
50% of trainees from one or more special populations and receive two additional points if 
51% to 100% of trainees are part of one or more special populations. Please see section 
V.B.2 (4) on page 17 of the UWT RFP for these evaluation criteria. 

The SPT program is more relevant to applicants who have expertise in serving special 
population(s).  These applicants might be able to provide customized services and opportunities 
to meet the unique needs of the special population(s).  Applicants could best decide whether 
they should apply to SPT or UWT based on their organizational mission and expertise serving and 
recruiting one or more special population(s); and/or percent of special population(s) they 
envision in their training program. 

UWT Q #7) What file type should be submitted for Unemployed Worker Training (UWT) Program 
attachment 2? 

UWT A #7) Please submit attachment 2, “Business Commitment” in an Excel (.exl) format 
and not in a Portable Document Format (.pdf). 

New Questions as of 6/3/16 start below: 

UWT Q #8) I filled out an application for Unemployed Worker Training Program and got back that 
I’m not eligible. Is there someone who I can speak to in order to become eligible? 

UWT A #8) Please note as stated in the Unemployed Worker RFP section II.B. (Use of 
Funds), “Tuition charges and other fees may not be charged to the dislocated workers served 
under this CFA-UWT funding opportunity.  Trainees cannot contribute to the cost of the 
training(s).”  In review of the responses you provided, question #5904, “Will tuition charges and 
other fees be charged to the trainees served under this training program?” is checked yes. 

New Questions as of 6/10/16 start below: 
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UWT Q #9) We are a college that plans to offer a training program that will place workers into 
culinary careers, in partnership with a local Chamber and several regional restaurants, 
through the Unemployed Worker Training program  We want to make sure that as the training 
provider, we can be the grant applicant. 

UWT A #9) Under the Unemployed Worker Training (UWT) Program, the college, as the 
training provider, must be the grant applicant.  Please note that the prospective trainees must be 
dislocated workers. For the full definition of, and assistance in determining whether someone is a 
dislocated worker, see Attachment 9, Determining Dislocated Workers and Special Populations, 
of this RFP.   The applicant must also receive commitment from businesses to interview the 
trainees for available jobs. Evidence for this commitment must be demonstrated by completing 
the Business Commitment (Attachment 2) of this RFP.   

UWT Q #10) In the RFP for this year’s CFA, the DOL Training Grants section indicates that 
the qualifying organizations who can apply include Workforce Development Boards and 
training organizations.  Our organization is a 501c3 non-profit that provides job placement, 
job coaching, supportive employment services and vocational services to the community.  We 
are developing a Training Center, which is the reason we are applying for a grant.  We will be 
the Training Organization for two training tracks under the categories of Unemployed Workers 
and Special Populations.  Do we qualify to apply under these two programs? 

UWT A #10) As a training provider, a not-for-profit is eligible to apply for the Unemployed 
Worker Training (UWT) Program and the Special Populations Training (SPT) Program.  Please 
ensure that the proposed trainings are concrete occupational skills training course(s) as described 
in sections II and III of the Request for Proposals (RFP) available at www.labor.ny.gov/cfa/. 

A not-for-profit organization may apply for the Existing Employee Training (EET) Program if it is 
training its current employees, and may apply for the New Hire Training (NHT) Program if it 
plans to hire a dislocated worker for training. 

Please see a comparison chart of all four programs at www.labor.ny.gov/cfa. Also, a 
comprehensive list of questions for all of the DOL programs is available at 
https://apps.cio.ny.gov/apps/cfa/help.cfm?section=programquestions/. 

New Questions as of 6/17/16 start below: 

UWT Q #11) We are a community-based organization that, in the past, has used a grant 
writer to assist us in writing proposals for grants.  Does this clause in the RFP for Unemployed 
Worker Training mean that we would not be able to use a grant writer to assist in writing a 
response to this CFA: “4) No consultant or any other third party has written or contributed 
wording to the proposal or solicited the applicant, as their customer, to apply for these 
monies;“? 

UWT A #11) Yes, use of a grant writer is acceptable, only if the applicant, not the grant 
writer, commits to implementing the trainings/services listed in the application, if a grant is 
awarded.  All language in the application must be at the request of the applicant and at all times, 
the applicant must attest that the complete application, including all requests for funding, is that 
of the applicant.  By submission of a proposal, applicants agree with all required Request for 
Proposal terms and conditions. 

http://www.labor.ny.gov/cfa/
http://www.labor.ny.gov/cfa
https://apps.cio.ny.gov/apps/cfa/help.cfm?section=programquestions/
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For this RFP, please interpret the following minimum threshold requirement: “no consultant or 
any other third party has written or contributed wording to the proposal or solicited the 
applicant, as their customer, to apply for these monies” (section V.B.1) as these entities are not 
eligible to apply on behalf of any other applicants (section III. A.). 

New Questions as of 6/24/16 start below: 

UWT Q #12) For SPT and UWT programs, question 10 under evaluation criteria asks for 
information examinations the trainees must complete as part of the course. Will it be okay to 
have assessments? 

UWT A #12) The examinations may include any type of formal evaluations conducted to 
assess the skills gained by the trainees. For example, projects, written documents, products, 
tests, or practical exams that are graded or evaluated. 

New Questions as of 7/1/16 start below: 

UWT Q #13) For displaced homemakers, does that mean the primary earner has to be fully 
unemployed? 

UWT A #13) Displaced homemakers will need to self-attest that they are displaced 
homemakers. As stated in section III.B. of the Unemployed Worker Training (UWT) and Special 
Populations Training (SPT) Request for Proposal (RFP), “no longer supported by that income” as a 
description of a displaced homemaker may refer to, but is not limited to:  

 The homemaker’s spouse becoming unemployed;  

 A spouse’s death;  

 The family receiving public benefits; and/or  

 Divorce  

Applicants must refer potential trainees to the nearest Career Center where staff will 
determine whether or not the displaced homemaker is eligible as a dislocated worker based 
on the self-attestation and any additional information provided. 

UWT Q #14) I am trying to register to apply for a UWT CFA. I have tried a couple of times 
and even after changing some of the answers to the threshold questions, I keep being told 
that I don’t qualify. Can you let me know if there are any technical issues happening? 

UWT A #14) Yes responses to threshold questions #5902 and #5904 would deem an 
application to the Unemployed Worker Training (UWT) program ineligible.  As noted in Section 
V.B.1. of the UWT RFP, applicants must attest that “none of the training providers listed in the 
proposal, any consultant, or any other third party has written or contributed wording to the 
proposal or solicited the applicant, as their customer, to apply for these monies” and “tuition 
charges and other fees will not be charged to the trainees served under this training program.  If 
you are changing the responses as indicated and remain unable to move past threshold 
questions, you may need to restart the process as we have received the following response from 
CFA portal administration: 

“There is no way to resubmit a threshold question.  The applicant will need to register with a 
new token and start a brand new application if a threshold question is answered incorrectly.” 
(Answer provided by CFA-Tech@ny.gov) 

mailto:CFA-Tech@ny.gov
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UWT Q #15) We are a not-for-profit entity interested in applying for funding through the 
CFA.  The CFA RFPs cap the indirect cost rate at 10%, but we have a different approved 
negotiated federal indirect cost rate.  Please clarify which rate will be used. 

UWT A #15) For the Consolidated Funding Application (CFA) 6.0 Special Populations Training 
(SPT) and Unemployed Worker Training (UWT) programs, the relationship created between 
NYSDOL and the applicant is one of a sub-recipient.  Funding for administrative costs, including 
indirect costs, to a sub-recipient is warranted.  The indirect cost rate will be set at 10% unless the 
applicant has an approved federally recognized indirect cost rate negotiated with the Federal 
government.  This federally approved rate could be more or less than 10%.  In those instances the 
federally approved rate will be used. 

Given the Governor’s CFA priority of maximizing training dollars, NYSDOL will not negotiate 
indirect cost rates. 

Administrative costs, direct and indirect, are not applicable to the Existing Employee Training 
(EET) and New Hire Training (NHT) programs.  Awards under these programs do not create a 
sub-recipient relationship between the applicant and NYSDOL, making payment of 
administrative costs unwarranted. 

All RFPs have been amended to reflect this guidance. 

Note that the 10% indirect cost rate is calculated as a percentage of the Modified Total Direct 
Costs (MTDC) associated with the applicant’s program.  The definition of MTDC can be found at 
https://fawiki.fws.gov/pages/viewpage.action?pageId=24707431. 

New Questions as of 7/15/16 start below: 

UWT Q #16) If a trainee would like to take a for credit course offered at a community 
college (the college is the applicant) would that training be allowable? Other trainings will be 
offered through the Workforce Development Division. 

UWT A #16) The Unemployed Worker Training (UWT) Program is intended to fund one or 
more occupational skills training course(s), defined as instruction conducted in a classroom 
setting, either at an outside institution or at the worksite.  As part of the Program Design (section 
V.B.2. of the Request for Proposal (RFP)) and Program Cost (section V.B.4. of the RFP), you are 
able to describe up to 5 distinct courses. If you need to include more than five courses, please 
use the instructions provided in General Question #44 from the Questions and Answers to the 

RFP, available at http://www.labor.ny.gov./CFA/cfa-6-0-q-and-a.pdf. 

Each course may have its own individual tuition rate and number of anticipated trainees.  
Therefore, a trainee in the UWT Program may attend a for-credit course at the community 
college and attend the other course(s) through the Workforce Development Division, as long as 
the for-credit course is associated with the concrete occupational skills training course(s) and not 
a standalone training course. 

UWT Q #17) The RFP references “Dollars and $ense” and the Self-Sufficiency Estimator as 
tools to introduce to our trainees to help them understand the salaries necessary to support 
themselves.  Our program offers free access to financial counseling for each of our trainees.  Is 
specifically utilizing “Dollars and $ense” and the Self-Sufficiency Estimator a requirement or 
an activity associated with points awarded in the proposal?  

https://fawiki.fws.gov/pages/viewpage.action?pageId=24707431
http://www.labor.ny.gov./CFA/cfa-6-0-q-and-a.pdf
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UWT A #17) The evaluation question in the RFP asks how the occupational skills training will 
build awareness of career pathways among trainees (Section B.2. of the UWT and SPT RFP). 
Utilizing “Dollars and $ense” and the Self-Sufficiency Estimator is not a requirement under this 
RFP, but they are suggested tools for implementing the strategy of providing labor market 
information to the trainees.  Applicants are not limited to using these tools. However, utilizing 
the strategies or activities listed in the evaluation is associated with the points awarded for the 
proposal.  If the financial counseling provided by your agency includes provision of labor market 
information to the trainees, then it can be considered for receiving points. 

UWT Q #18) The RFP suggests that the Employability Profile at JobZone is noted as a tool to 
introduce to our trainees as a supportive service.  Our program offers referrals to 
organizations where our trainees can find assistance with childcare, transportation, and 
housing among other needs.  Is specifically utilizing the Employability Profile at JobZone a 
requirement, or is it an activity associated with points awarded in the proposal? 

UWT A #18) The evaluation question in the RFP asks for the strategies the applicant will use 
to offer supportive services to ensure trainees are retained in the occupational skills training and 
the new job they are placed in upon completion of the training (Section B.2. of the UWT and SPT 
RFP). Utilizing the Employability Profile from JobZone is not a requirement under this RFP, but it 
is a suggested tool for implementing provision of supportive services. Applicants are not limited 
to using the tool. However, utilizing the strategies or activities listed in the evaluation question is 
associated with the points awarded for the proposal. 

UWT Q #19) What documents will we be required to submit to proof that our clients were 
dislocated workers prior to graduating and obtaining employment?  Do you require a specific 
attestation letter as proof that you would be able to send to us in advance? 

UWT A #19) The dislocated worker eligibility of all prospective trainees under the UWT must 
be verified with the help of the Career Centers.  Any prospective trainees must be referred to a 
Career Center to determine their dislocated worker eligibility (section III.C of the RFP).  To 
ensure the reimbursements of costs, consider getting the eligibility of the prospective trainees 
verified before their participation in the training. 

Criteria that will be used by the Career Centers to verify the dislocated worker status of the 
prospective trainees is provided in the Attachment 9 to the RFP.  Questions and Answers, UWT 
Question # 13 and SPT Question #17, provide additional details for displaced homemakers and 
self-employed individuals, which is a category of dislocated workers. 

UWT Q #20) Are we allowed to use our existing training program, expanding it to attract 
participants who are dislocated?  For example, if we have a class of 20, can we attract an 
additional 10 for a total of 30 in a class to use our current professional trainers and leverage 
our current program structure? 

UWT A #20) Yes, the current program structure could be used to train unemployed 
dislocated workers; however only the allowable costs of additional trainees, who are dislocated 
workers, can be funded with the UWT grant.  Also, your organization, as a training provider, will 
need commitment from businesses to interview these trainees for employment and provide the 
information in Business Commitment (attachment 2 to the RFP). 

https://labor.ny.gov/CFA/cfa-6-0-attachment-9-determining-dislocated-workers-and-special-populations.pdf
https://labor.ny.gov/CFA/cfa-6-0-q-and-a.pdf
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If the remaining 20 students are existing employee of your organization, then you may choose to 
apply for the Existing Employee Training (EET) program, if the employees are in middle-skills 
occupations (Job Zones 1, 2 or 3).  However, please note that the maximum award an eligible 
applicant may receive is a total of $100,000, regardless of the number of NYSDOL programs for 
which it applies.  Also, any proposal must not be based in whole or in part on the assumption that 
they will receive complementary funding from other CFA programs. 

UWT Q #21) Can we include the salaries of the training coordinator?  This person plays a 
key role in designing the program and in offering supportive services such as following up with 
clients once they are employed to increase retention. 

UWT A #21) Under the UWT program, if applicants do not have a published tuition rate, then 
they must create a non-published tuition rate, which may include salary of the training 
coordinator and various other allowable costs.  Please read section II.B of the UWT RFP to review 
allowable costs that can be included in the non-published tuition rate. 

UWT Q #22) In regards to Q_5929, if we choose one hourly wage but more than 51% of 
trainees end up being paid less, will we be penalized?  

UWT A #22) For Q_5929, provide your realistic estimate of the hourly wage that 51% or 
more of trainees will receive upon completion of the occupational skills training.  This realistic 
wage estimate can be strengthened with information from the businesses who have committed 
to interview your trainees for employment.  Your answer will be scored based on the percentages 
you provide: for $9.00 to $12.50=1 point, $12.51 to $15.00=2 points, and $15.01 and higher=3 
points. 

New Questions as of 7/22/16 start below: 

UWT Q #23) As I understand it, points are calculated based on the skill level group and the 
lowest cost per participant within that group.  How are the programs classified as low, 
medium and high skill levels? 

UWT A #23) Per section V.B.4. of the Unemployed Worker Training (UWT) Request for 
Proposal (RFP), the skill level (low, medium, or high) of each occupation is based on the Job Zone 
rank (1-5) assigned to the occupational title by its’ O*NET Code.  The Job Zone takes into account 
the education, related experience, and job training required for each job title.  For more 
information on O*NET Codes and Job Zones, please see Attachment 10 of the RFP, O*NET and 
Job Zone Information.  You can find the full RFP at www.labor.ny.gov/cfa. 

UWT Q #24) Is the cost per participant calculated as the requested amount divided by 
number of participants or the total program budget divided by the number of participants. 

UWT A #24) As detailed in the same section of the RFP, the cost per participant is calculated 
by dividing the total requested program cost, not including any leveraged funding, by the total 
number of anticipated trainees in the program.  For example, if your program had 15 trainees 
and requested the full amount of $100,000 from the CFA, the cost per participant will be 
approximately $6,667. 

UWT Q #25) Does job retention in the workforce apply as opposed to job retention with 
the same employer where participants get placed at right out of our program? 

http://www.labor.ny.gov/cfa
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UWT A #25) Job retention under the Unemployed Worker Training (UWT) Program directly 
aligns with job placement.  The strategies described for job placement and retention in Q_5921 
relate to placing the trainees in a job upon completion of the occupational skills training course(s) 
and ensuring they are retained in these or other positions in the workforce, at the same or a 
higher salary level. 
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